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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG BEEBMAXSMARQE (MBI AIFER (TRIXR] 2556
KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)
AERDATERREARZAARHK-—BALETZHE - LEER

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a high investment risk may E¥RLT2RABBEEBRERNEE  FREARYURIORH - it
be attached. In particular, companies may list on GEM with neither a track record of profitability nor any S HAERETZARTRERANERZEAAKEER 2T
obligation to forecast future profitability. Furthermore, there may be risks arising out of the emerging nature of XRERMEERR - EEREZATERTBRENZEQRRZE

companies listed on GEM and the business sectors or countries in which the companies operate. Prospective ERE TRSBFEHBFZEBAKFHRERE - AIERZR

investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to BRBRAMFERTAXRMBDESEXREBE
invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean
that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

RREE -

HRAIERET2ARABHELE  TAXREEZEZSTHER

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be ERIMERBERE2FFAZIBRAZHERDEAR - BRELERE
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities trade on the Main Board and no assurance is given that fﬁ‘J%ﬂx%’ BeR5EARRBRZTS o AIERBME

there will be a liquid market in the securities trade on GEM. The principal means of information dissemination on FEREBRFMAAERMRZEBARELNE - LHTLABA
GEM is publication on the Internet website operated by the Stock Exchange. Listed companies are not generally EEBREERENNEBARAAGKRIEN - Bt BEREZALE
required to issue paid announcements in gazette newspapers. Accordingly, prospective investors should note that B -REAMBARRAE  AURBAXERLETRTAZRHN
they need to have access to the GEM website in order to obtain up-to-date information on GEM-listed issuers. BEH e

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this document, makes no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss

howsoever .1/fsfng from or in reliance upon the whole or any part ot the contents of this document.

This document, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Proactive Technology Holdings Limited collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange for the purpose of giving information
with regard to Proactive Technology Holdings Limited. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained in this document is accurate
and complete in all material respects and not misleading; (2) there are no other matters the omission of which
would make any statement in this document misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed in this document have been

arrived at after due and careful consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.

MISSION STATEMENT & & 12 =

Proactive’s mission is to provide interactive telecommunications and technology solutions
to enterprises in the Asia Pacific region to enhance business value and customer satisfaction.
Proactive commits to empowering its customers with the ability to absorb and take advantages
of the latest technologies by providing top quality telecommunications, information
technology and computer telephony solutions. It is the mission of the Company to build on
its existing position in the industry to become the leading Tele-Commerce technology and

service provider in the Asia Pacific region.

Proactive is a pioneer in this new market with a solid record in offering cost effective and

scaleable solutions to multinational corporations, carriers and service providers.
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AMAEEES  RRAEMAFFHEANDGE  BREEINEALET IR URES
ERXEERBEFESN AUREFBLOME - Bl TBIATPUKEEZHRE @ =it

RERZEMER  BEAMKLKRE ﬂ‘“*%ﬂ%&ééw%?ﬁ@ﬁ?ﬁﬁ%%?ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ°$
RAIRERENMZEYS  RATABRBNEAREHUZEARERMERBHERD

HAMERERZE FPERBRBESSCERREANREEEZER HMNESERMEMR
EATHER DEMAEXEENEEETPR > RBBER®K -




HEADQUARTERS

BEBEAT

Proactive Technology Holdings Limited
Proactive Technology Limited
Proactive International Limited
Proactive Multimedia Marketing Agency Limited
14th Floor, Bangkok Bank Building

18 Bonham Strand West Street,

Sheung Wan, Hong Kong
EAMKERBRAQ A
BEARMBEBERAF

BEARBEBRERAE
BEMZEENSHEREARAA

FE LR 185
BARITAEI4E

Tel No. E5&: (852) 2259-7300

Fax No. f§X: (852) 2598-8290

BEIJING OFFICE

BIA= 7 Y

Proactive Technology Development (Beijing) Limited
Room 1006, 10/F., Block B, Intelli-Centre,
No. 18 Zhong Guan Cun East Road,
Haidian District, Beijing, China

Zip: 100083
TRERABERRBERERAA

46 5 T U [ B A ER B 1857

B 5 B X K B BE 1042 1006 =

L #%: 100083

Tel No. E&: (86) 10-8260-0801

Fax No. {£E: (86) 10-8260-0810

BEIJING ASSOCIATED COMPANY

b REE QT

Beijing Teletron System Integration Company Limited
Room 1007-1009, 10/F., Block B, Intelli-Centre,
No. 18 Zhong Guan Cun East Road,

Haidian District, Beijing, China

Zip: 100083
ERTEEBRLAEXNERA A

46 5 T U [ B A ER B 1857

B %5 B X K B BZ 1048 1007-1009 2=

L #%: 100083

Tel No. E&: (86) 10-8260-0801

Fax No. {£X: (86) 10-8260-0810




CORPORATE PROFILE

~ A& N

Proactive Technology Holdings Limited (“Proactive”) is
one of the leading technology companies in the Asia
Pacific region, well versed in both information and
telecommunication technologies.

Proactive was founded by a group of experts in information
and telecommunications technology in 1992. Over the
years, Proactive has designed and developed a wide range
of value-added telecommunications and computer
telephony solutions and established longstanding
partnerships with a number of industry leaders such as
Lucent Technologies, Nortel Networks, Intel-Dialogic,
Microsoft, Envox, Altigen, Captaris and GN Netcom.

Today, the enterprise telecommunication solutions
developed by Proactive serve many well-known
multinational corporations from a wide spectrum of
industries including banking, finance, utilities, tele-services
operators, call-centre bureau, education, transportation,
government, and etc; with reference sites spanning from
Hong Kong to Greater China and throughout the whole
Asia Pacific Region.

Proactive is committed to provide the industry with world-
class technology and quality services based on its thorough
understanding of its customers’ businesses and their needs.
Its dedication to product research and development is
another key factor contributing to its success. With a
dedicated team of experienced I.T. professionals and
technical consultants, Proactive is not only well-equipped
to provide the state-of-the-art technology platforms and
applications; but also is qualified to offer consultancy
service in the process of service planning, project
implementation and system commissioning and operation.

Firmly rooted in Hong Kong, Proactive has recorded
continuous growth with the establishment in computer
telephony sectors from the local market. It has been
pursuing expansion of business opportunity in the Greater
China region. In order to operate its business in a more
efficient manner and improve after sales services in China,
Proactive has enhanced and consolidated the market
position of its two branches in Beijing and Shanghai. To
expedite its businesses expansion, Proactive further
strengthened its financial background through securing the
listing on the GEM board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited in May 2000.

Proactive’s mission is to become the leading Tele-
Commerce technology applications and service provider
in the Asia Pacific region. Leveraging the strong foundation
in both telecommunications and on information
technologies that has been built and reinforced over the
years, Proactive will continue to focus on its core business
and explore new high-growth business opportunities in
this ever-changing industry.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
E

TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

Regardless that the overall market situation is gradually
recovered in 2005, the IT and telecom market is still
undergoing major re-construction. The conventional
telecom operators are no longer protected by monopoly
status and those good old days derived from the “cash
cow” generated by huge basic telephone and IDD revenue
are almost retrospection. In addition to the challenge of
Internet and mobile revolution, the IT and telecom market
is being converted and reformed in a way that brings about
vital crisis to some certain traditional carriers while
providing tremendous opportunities for some new operators

with creativity and inventive power.

Since the listing in 2000, Proactive has been striving to
re-shape internally and expand our coverage beyond Hong
Kong. We successfully controlled our costs and expenses
in an effective way and struck a good balance between
keeping good cost control and possessing technological
and creative power for capturing future fabulous business
opportunities. We extended our coverage to PRC and have
stemmed a solid foothold by successfully building some

benchmarking projects in Beijing.

Since the upcoming 2008 Beijing Olympics Games and
the rapid economical growth in Mainland China, the
overall PRC market is definitely full of remarkable and
sizable chances. During these years’ endeavor and
preparation, Proactive is now well-equipped ourselves to
tackle the future possible challenges and capable enough
to realize and capture upcoming tremendous business

opportunities.

Though there is uncertainty to certain extent among the
pace of recovery of IT and telecom market, we can still
easily detect that technology is expediting to influence
our daily living. The use of mobile phone becomes nearly
a must and the utilization of e-purse (such as ticket booking
through internet or small spending by Octopus) really
brings about convenience to us. This is apparently not a
“bubble” any more. As a technological company with core
competence in technology development, we are well
prepared to cater for the challenge of the ever-changing
competitive market environment and well suited to create

a new era of technology.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
E

M EE

AEBERSEEFELB20,982,0007T © 416 F
E18 4078 %1,764,0007T - T E1E B0.87(L -
FR - AEHEZEEFMER/BES, 73500073k
G377 - BB - AEEWEERREAE
BE-RZZTTRAF+=-A=+—0 " BE& kR
1TE R KB 18,549,000 © K FIR£3.688

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group generated a turnover of approximately
HK$20,982,000. Consolidated
approximately HK$1,764,000. The loss per share was

net loss recorded
HKO0.8 cent. Net assets of the Group amounted to
HK$8,735,000 which represented the net asset value per

share of HK3.77 cents. No long term borrowings at the

year end date. As at 31st December 2005, cash and bank fill
deposit stood at approximately HK$8,549,000 or cash per
share of HK3.68 cents.
RESULTS OF OPERATION ESEE 5
Year ended
1st Quarter  2nd Quarter  3rd Quarter  4th Quarter 31st December
2005 2005 2005 2005 2005
ey
=t-8
£-ZE et ] E=ZE ENFE LEE
“ERRE C-Z2RFf C-BBRE C-BERLE C"ZRIf
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THT THT THL THR THR
Turnover EEE 6,073 4,818 5,549 4,542 20,982
Gross Profit =7 3,554 1,723 1,841 2,340 9,458
Gross Profit Margin Eip: 59% 36% 33% 52% 45%
Selling and HERTHER
Administration Expenses 3,550 2,316 2,533 3,171 11,570
Net Loss EE 18 727 807 212 1,764
(P)/LBITDA BHS  BRERTER
(BH) /&R (210) 530 709 165 1,194
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
E

FINAL DIVIDEND

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31st December 2005
(2004: nil).

APPRECIATION

Taking this opportunity, | would like to thank for all
colleagues for their contribution so far with the company
especially during these few years to encounter the adverse
market situation. Our colleagues have successfully
demonstrated their creativity and flexibility to gain the
support from customers by providing quality service within
the limited approved budget. | believe that our strong team
morale will sustain and keep growing which is definitely a

vital successful factor for our future achievements.

Tsang Chi Hin

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 24th March 2006
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEN®EDN

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Turnover of the Group for the year ended 31st December
2005 was approximately HK$20,982,000 (2004:
HK$17,515,000), which represented an increase of 20%

as compared with the previous financial year.

Turnover from telecommunication business increased by
4% to HK$7,228,000 (2004: HK$6,961,000), representing
34% (2004: 40%) of the Group’s total turnover. Turnover
attributable to our computer telephony business increased
by 30% to HK$13,754,000 (2004: HK$10,554,000),
accounting for 66% (2004: 60%) of the Group’s total

turnover.

The gross profit for the year under review was
approximately HK$9,458,000 which was increased by 16%
comparing with last year (2004: HK$8,129,000), while the
gross profit margin was maintained at 45% (2004: 46%).

Operating costs for the year ended 31st December 2005
approximately HK$11,536,000 (2004:
HK$15,479,000), representing a 25% decrease.

was

The audited consolidated loss for the year attributable to
equity holders of the parents also decreased by 76% to
approximately HK$1,764,000 (2004: HK$7,248,000). Loss
per share was HKO0.8 cent for the year under review (2004:
HK3.1 cents).

B %% [5] B8

AEEBE-_TTAF+_A=1+—HILEFEE
K& 2547 820,982,0000T ( —TZUEF B
¥17,515,0007T ) @ & EF—HMBRFE EH20% °

BAEBREZEETRE—FE LF4%ED
¥7,228,0007C ( ZZ=Z P : B ¥6,961,000
) HEEBREEE Z34% ( Z ST PEF -
40% ) - BISEFEEB 2 EXETE EA30%E B
13,754,000t ( —ZZ=Z W4 : B %10,554,000
) hEBBEETEZ66% ( ZTTNEF :
60% ) °

REE 2 EMHA BHH9,458,0007T * b E—F
EEA16% ( ZZF T F : #%8,129,000
JT) v AT - BAERERFNA5% ( ZETWF :
46% ) KF o

HE-_ZTRAFE+_A=+—BHEEXLYD
B A% 11,536,000 ( Z T WMF : B
15,479,0007C ) * @18 &25%

BREZNE QRARERA ARBEAEEEER
D76%E K7 1,764,0007T ( —BBPIE :
#7,248,0007T ) ° REEREE GIREEZ0.8
B ( ZZTTME - 3.8 ) -

HN T

(]

T >

o c

)

i

SO U1+ —



T

® 5

© >

OOC

=

SUT 4+ —

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEN®EDN

BUSINESS REVIEW

Adverse economical environment persisting within these
past few years has been making the Hong Kong operations
suffer from unprecedented difficulties. Though during this
recent couple of years the overall market performance tends
to be improved to certain extent, the progress of the
recovery, especially in the IT and telecom market, is still
in a sluggish pace. Such an intense and over-throat
competitive situation in the telecom field brings about the
scenario that the merging and acquisition throughout
telecom market are being taken place. The market
reformation and consolidation might evolve a profitable
phenomenon eventually but the process is prolonged and

time-consuming.

Regardless to what extent the IT and telecom market is
evolving, the Group keeps on controlling the cost and
expenses of operation and implementing effective
management on controlling the company. Our endeavor
upon cost control and operation enhancement has
contributed to decrease the operating administration cost
by approximately 25% to HK$11,536,000 (2004:
HK$15,479,000) when compared with the previous

financial year.

We have initiated the streamlining of our operations,
especially in Mainland China, and created business
dynamics to cope with the changes in business needs. We
successfully developed a cost-effective local engineering
team. The relocation of our Hong Kong office in early
2005 to right-sized premises helped further reducing the

administration expenses as compared with last year.

2 7% [0 B8
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEN®EDN

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Our Joint Venture entity in Beijing, the Beijing Teletron
System Integration (BJTSI) has completed the Phase Il call
center project for Beijing Labor Bureau. The project was
first established in Beijing in 2003 and is a web-based
multi-media contact center with advanced features. This
call center technology is proven to be successfully utilized
in Labor Bureau and forms a benchmark project. Beyond
that, we have built some more call center projects in
Beijing such as for Police and Environment Protection
Bureau, etc. We have also completed the installation of
the automatic fare collection (AFC) systems for various
tourist spots such as the Great Wall, etc, which allows
tourists to use e-payment as a means for entry ticketing.
The similar project will extend to other famous tourist

spots within the coming few years.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The massive increasing amount of Internet users is
overwhelming various applications across the areas of voice,
data and video. Though this trend inevitably brings about
some negative impacts to traditional fixed network operators
such as the use of Voice Over IP (VolP) over the basic voice
and IDD applications, the upsurge use of Internet is evolving
tremendous opportunities and creating gigantic market places.
The wide spread of mobile phone users and the advent of
3G, on the other hand, creates synergy effect and generates
a large demand upon value-added services. These combined
factors do pull out a powerful momentum for deriving and

accelerating the needs upon utilizing mobile and IP and thus

7O (8)
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FUTURE PROSPECTS (Continued)

become a driving force for market reformation and
consolidation. The advanced development of IP and mobile
technology reforms and revolutionizes the IT and telecom
applications in a way that tends to adopt a single hand-held
device to integrate various applications within the appliance.
The IT market upsurge in 2000 has already been identified
as a phenomenon of “bubble”. However, we may deem that
the recent development is a kind of “genuine” influence to
our actual daily living which will in turn create a real and

vast market place eventually.

Since our well establishment in Beijing, we are able to
capture more businesses in PRC. Our Joint Venture entity
in Beijing is building on the automatic fare collection (AFC)
system for the tourist spots. Within these few years, all
famous tourist spots including Palace and Summer Palace
will be utilized the advanced e-payment card for entry.
This is a must-do project for implementing the Digital
Beijing for facing the upcoming 2008 Olympics Games in
Beijing. In fact, the e-payment (or so-called electronic
purse) is deemed to be an effective and convenient way

for traveling and petty cash spending.

For the business outlook, the overall IT and telecom market
environment is still obscure and is facing some sorts of
uncertainty. However it would appear that the reformation
of the IT and telecom is regulated in a way that severe
cut-throat competition will no longer exist. Through

merging and acquisition, the remaining few survivors will

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FUTURE PROSPECTS (Continued)

still capture certain market share and become profitable
somehow. The market will generate a number of value-
added services providers and the market will treasure those

with creativity and inventive power. Proactive, with our

RE (&)

RERBHER - MAZRalFeEERR
AREmMH - EAREEERMRR I ENE
FEN EFIABROMBERBE - &
EEBERRETEEERS  AREBENICES

well-equipped power for technological exploration, will ZHENEE -
fully match with the trend of future market development.
We will still keep on scrutinizing cost control of the
operation and adjust promptly to capture more business
opportunities.
LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES REBESRPBEER
2004 2005 Change
—ERENEF —EBRARF 21k
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FET
Total assets BEE 17,749 13,351 -25%
Total liabilities mERE 7,347 4,616 -37%
Working capital LEER 7,927 7,580 -4%
Cash and bank deposit BHe MBTTER 9,763 8,549 -12%
Short-term bank borrowings 52 HIIR 1T A 3R 874 1,086 24%
Debt to equity ratio BEHERLX 0.71x 0.53x
Gearing ratio ERBELE X 0.000x 0.000x

During 2005, the Group was principally financed by cash
flow generated internally together with the balance of

proceeds from IPO and short-term bank borrowings.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES (Continued)

As at 31st December 2005, the Group had consolidated
net current assets of approximately HK$7,580,000 (2004:
HK$7,927,000). Cash and bank deposits stood at
approximately HK$8,500,000 as at 31st December 2005,
or cash per share of HK$0.04, of which approximately
HK$7,900,000 and HK$600,000 was denominated in Hong
Kong dollars and United States dollars respectively. The
total short-term bank borrowings was approximately
HK$1,086,000 (2004: HK$874,000) and the gearing ratio,
measured on the basic of total non-current liabilities to
total assets less current liabilities, was 0 times (2004: 0

times).

As at 31st December 2005, the Group had no capital
commitment (2004: nil).

The Directors are of opinion that, the Group has sufficient
working capital for its present requirements.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31st December 2005, the Group had aggregate
banking facilities of approximately HK$7,000,000 (2004:
HK$6,200,000) from several banks for overdrafts, loans
and trade financing, which were secured by pledges of
the Group’s time deposits of approximately HK$2,000,000
(2004: HK$5,002,000) at banks. Unused facilities as at
the same date amounted to approximately HK$5,914,000
(2004: HK$5,148,000). The Group did not have any
charges on other assets as at 31st December 2005 and
2004.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES
There were no significant investment held, material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries during the year

under review.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATION IN EXCHANGE RATES

The reporting currency adopted by the Group was Hong
Kong dollars. Majority of the Group’s sales, receivables,
bank borrowings and expenditures were denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars. As Hong
Kong dollars is closely linked with United States dollars,
therefore foreign currency exposure to the Group shall be

minimal.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31st December 2005, the Group had no contingent
liabilities (2004: HK$177,000).

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

The Group (excluding its associate) had approximately 22
full-time employees (2004: 24 employees) in Hong Kong
and PRC as at 31st December 2005. During the year ended
31st December 2005, the Group had incurred staff costs
(including directors’ emoluments) of approximately
HK$6,012,000 (2004: HK$7,686,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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EMPLOYEE INFORMATION (Continued)

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 3rd May 2000
by all shareholders of the Company, the Company has
adopted a Share Option Scheme pursuant to which options
may be granted to full time employees (including executive
directors) of the Group to subscribe for share in the

Company.

Termination to the Share Option Scheme and adoption of
a new share option scheme (“New Share Option Scheme”)
were approved by the shareholders of the Company at a
special general meeting held on 13th November 2002 in
order to comply with the new requirement of Chapter 23
of the GEM Listing Rules effected on 1st October 2001.
No share option has been granted under the New Share
Option Scheme as at 31st December 2005. The options
already granted under the Share Option Scheme are

unaffected.

As at 31st December 2005, 9 employees (2004: 7 employees)
had completed the required number of years of service under
the Employment Ordinance to be eligible for long service
payments on termination of their employment with the Group.
The Group is only liable to make such payments where
termination meets the required circumstances specified in
the Employment Ordinance. As at 31st December 2005, the
estimated amount provided for such purpose amounted to
approximately HK$250,000 (2004: HK$450,000).
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors
Tsang Chi Hin

Lam Kim Chau

Lau Kai Shun, Barry
Wong Wai Ho

Pong Kam Wah

Li Siu Ming

Non-executive Directors
Chow Dah Jen, David

Independent Non-executive Directors
Yang Zhenhan

Leung Lok Ming
Lo Wa Kei, Roy

Chan Ho Wah, Terence (appointed on 12th August 2005)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Wong Wai Ho (resigned on 8th July 2005)
Lau Kai Shun, Barry (resigned on 8th July 2005)
Tsang Chi Hin (appointed on 8th July 2005)
Lam Kim Chau (appointed on 8th July 2005)

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Yang Zhenhan
Leung Lok Ming

Lo Wa Kei, Roy

Chan Ho Wah, Terence (appointed on 12th August 2005)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Chan Ho Wah, Terence
Tsang Chi Hin

Lo Wa Kei, Roy

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Lo Wa Kei, Roy

Tsang Chi Hin

Chan Ho Wah, Terence

COMPANY SECRETARIES
Ha Lan, Jessica (resigned on 8th July 2005)
Leung Pui Ki (appointed on 8th July 2005)
COMPLIANCE OFFICER
Wong Wai Ho

Tsang Chi Hin

(resigned on 8th July 2005)
(appointed on 8th July 2005)

QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT
(resigned on 8th July 2005)
(appointed on 8th July 2005)

Ha Lan, Jessica
Li Kam Cheung

(resigned on 12th August 2005)
(resigned on 12th August 2005)
(appointed on 12th August 2005)

(resigned on 17th February 2006)

(resigned on 12th August 2005)
Robert Brainin Issenman (resigned on 12th August 2005)

(resigned on 12th August 2005)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
14th Floor

Bangkok Bank Building

18 Bonham Strand West Street

Sheung Wan

Hong Kong

WEB-SITE

www.proactive.com.hk

E-MAIL

info@proactive.com.hk

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Butterfield Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Union Registrars Limited

311-312 Two Exchange Square

Central

Hong Kong

AUDITORS

ShineWing (HK) CPA Limited
Suites 09-18

20/F., Shui On Centre

6-8 Harbour Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISORS
Conyers Dill & Pearman

Wong Shum & Co. Solicitors & Notaries

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
Citic Ka Wah Bank Limited
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. TSANG Chi Hin, aged 47, is the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer of Proactive. He is the co-founder
of the Group and is responsible for corporate strategic
planning and management. Mr. Tsang holds a bachelor
degree in economics and a higher certificate in electronic
engineering with over 21 years of experience in
telecommunications and electronic industries. Mr. Tsang
started his marketing career in 1984. He then joined
Hongkong Telecom as a consultant in marketing data
communication services in 1987 and his last position in

Hongkong Telecom was Account Director.

Mr. LAM Kim Chau, aged 44, is the co-founder and the
Chief Technology Officer of Proactive . He is responsible
for regional business development and new technologies
procurement. Mr. Lam is a chartered electrical engineer in
the United Kingdom, member of the Hong Kong Computer
Society, British Computer Society and Institution of
Electrical Engineers. He has over 21 years of experience
in the telecommunications industry and holds a masters
degree in telecommunications from the University of Essex.
He has worked for Cathay Pacific Airways as a
communications engineer and Hongkong Telecom as a
consultant providing advisory services in data and

communication networking for enterprises in Hong Kong.

Mr. WONG Wai Ho, aged 56, joined Proactive in August
1999 and is the Finance Director of Proactive, in charge
of the Group’s financial affairs. Mr. Wong graduated from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong with a bachelor
degree majoring in accounting in 1971. Mr. Wong has
over 31 years experience, of which 15 years were in direct
investment. He had been appointed by Jardine Fleming as
Associate Director, Kleiwort Benson as Director and Advent
International Corp. as Managing Director. Prior to that, he
has worked with the Hong Kong Trade Development
Council (HKTDC) responsible for the promotion of Hong
Kong’s external trade for 13 years. Mr. Wong currently is
a director of The Chinese History & Culture Educational
Foundation and a member of the Board of Trustees, Chung

Chi College, The Chinese University of Hong Kong.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND
EESREREBAERN

Mr. LI Siu Ming, aged 49, has extensive knowledge of the
PRC market especially in the area of system infrastructure
and logistics. Mr. Li focuses on exploring the vast business

opportunities derived from PRC market for the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LEUNG Lok Ming, aged 34, was appointed
independent non-executive Director in July 2004. Mr.
Leung is a certified public accountant in Hong Kong. He
is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Leung

is currently a director of Union Alpha CPA Limited.

Mr. LO Wa Kei, Roy, aged 34, was appointed independent
non-executive Director in July 2004. Mr. Lo is a practicing
certified public accountant in Hong Kong. He is also a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong
Kong Securities Institute. Mr. Lo has over 9 years of
experience in auditing, accounting and finance. He is an
advisor of the Continuing Education Division of the
University of Oregon from the United States and is an
advisor of Education and Training Division of the Institute
of Commercial Management. Mr. Lo has experiences in
designing, planning and lecturing professional examination
courses in the University of Hong Kong, the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and the Hong Kong Baptist
University. He is currently the independent non-executive
director of Sun Hing Vision Group Holdings Limited, Gay
Giano International Group Limited, Vital BioTech Holdings
Limited and Sun Man Tai Holdings Company Limited,
companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange

of Hong Kong.

Mr. CHAN Ho Wah, Terence, aged 34, is a Chartered
Financial Analyst. He holds a bachelor degree of
engineering and a master degree of science in real estate
(general practice surveying) from the University of Hong
Kong. Mr. Chan has years of experience in the field of

finance.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group has complied with most of the code provisions
on Corporate Governance Practices as set out in the GEM
Listing Rules (“CG Code”) other than the deviations as

disclosed in this report.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings as set out in Rules
5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules throughout the year
ended 31st December 2005. Having made specific enquiry
of all directors, the Company’s directors have complied
with such code of conduct and required standard of

dealings.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises seven directors, of whom four are
executive directors and three are independent non-
executive directors. Detail of backgrounds and
qualifications of the chairman of the Company and the
other Directors are set out in the pages 17 to 18 of the
Annual Report. The participation of independent non-
executive directors in the Board brings independent
judgement on issues relating to the Group’s strategy,
performance, conflicts of interest and management process
to ensure that the interests of all shareholders of the

Company have been duly considered.

Each of the executive directors of the Company has entered
into a service contract with the Company, for an initial
term of three years commencing from 25th February 2000
in the cases of Mr. Tsang Chi Hin, Mr. Lam Kim Chau and
Mr. Wong Wai Ho, and for an initial term of two years
commencing from 12th August 2005 in the case of Mr. Li
Siu Ming. The service contracts shall continue thereafter
until terminated by either party giving the other not less
than three months’ notice after the expiration of the said

initial fixed term.

LEBEARE

EEER®RS

BRI AR E P ER 2 mBESN - AEED
XM ETRAUMBZEEERFRZAK
AlfE (TR EARTAD) -

& <1 Al

5%

EECRFERS

BHE-_ZZRAF+-_A=1t—AXEER " K
NA—ERBTBERAIZER FMRA$E5.48%
5.671&FTHA 5 FT 2 I E IR - ESHE

TRAFXSEMERTA - EH2REEEH
EEZHEAER ARREZCETZERAT

ARG ZHERE -

Exg

EEemtUESAK  HPOUARTES

M=2RBIFATES - ARE XK EHAM

é%Z“E&EWﬁIﬁ%$¢ﬁ%W§%m
cBUFANTEZRS2REEERERAKE

Zﬁﬁﬁ%‘i@fﬁ MamERRkEEAREEES
RBIRE  MHERARBE2ERIEZH=E
HERER -

EARRABNATEEEHARRATLRE A
B BERLE MBEREERBEREEN
AEHNBH_ZETTF_A-_TLHHMRAK SRH
=F  FIRAEENRBEEHNNE —_ZFZTRHF
NA+-BRERBH—F  MBEAHNATUAE
B EEREN-STEARNRTEEHRER
REE DR =ZEANKIEBARIL -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

LEBEARE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Each of the independent non-executive directors of the
Company has entered into a service contract with the
Company, for an initial term of two years commencing
and 1st July 2004 in the cases of Mr. Leung Lok Ming and
Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy and 12th August 2005 in the case of
Mr. Chan Ho Wah, Terence. The service contracts shall
continue thereafter until terminated by either party giving
the other not less than three months’ notice after the

expiration of the said initial fixed term.

The Board considers that all of the independent non-
executive directors are independent and has received from
each of them the annual confirmation of independence
required by the GEM Listing Rules.

The Board members for the year ended 31st December
2005 were:

Executive Directors
Tsang Chi Hin

Lam Kim Chau

Lau Kai Shun, Barry
Wong Wai Ho
Pong Kam Wah

Li Siu Ming

(resigned on 12th August 2005)

(resigned on 12th August 2005)
(appointed on 12th August 2005)

Non-executive Directors
Chow Dah Jen, David (resigned on 17th February 2006)
Independent Non-executive Directors

(resigned on 12th August 2005)
(resigned on 12th August 2005)

Yang Zhenhan

Robert Brainin Issenman
Leung Lok Ming

Lo Wa Kei, Roy

Chan Ho Wah, Terence (appointed on 12th August 2005)
The Board is responsible for the approving and monitoring
business plans, evaluating the performance of the Group
and oversight of management. The Board also focuses on
overall strategies and policies with particular attention paid

to the growth and financial performance of the Group.

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group
to executive directors and senior management, while
reserving certain key matters for its approval. Decisions of
the Board are communicated to the management through

executive directors who have attended at Board meetings.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
The Board held a board meeting for each quarter during
the year ended 31st December 2005. Details of the

attendance of the Board are as follows:

Executive Directors Attendance
Mr. Tsang Chi Hin (Chairman) 4/4
Mr. Lam Kim Chau 4/4
Mr. Lau Kai Shun, Barry

(resigned on 12th August 2005) 3/3
Mr. Wong Wai Ho 4/4
Mr. Pong Kam Wah

(resigned on 12th August 2005) 3/3
Mr. Li Siu Ming

(appointed on 12th August 2005) 2/2
Non-executive Director
Mr. Chow Dah Jen, David

(resigned on 17th February 2006) 1/4
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yang Zhenhan

(resigned on 12th August 2005) 2/2
Mr. Robert Brainin Issenman

(resigned on 12th August 2005) 2/2
Mr. Leung Lok Ming 2/4
Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy 2/4
Mr. Chan Ho Wah, Terence

(appointed on 12th August 2005) 2/2

Apart from the above regular board meetings of the year,
the Board will meet on other occasions when a board-
level decision on a particular matter is required. The
Directors will receive details of agenda items for decision
and minutes of committee meetings in advance of each

board meeting.

Under the code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code, every
Director should be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. The existing Bye-Laws of the

Company do not provide such requirement.

In order to comply with the code provision A.4.2 of the
CG Code, amendments to the Bye-Laws will be proposed
at the forthcoming annual general meeting to specify that
every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at

least once every three years.
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CHAIRMAN AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. The
division of responsibilities between the chairman and chief
executive officer should be clearly established and set out

in writing.

Mr. Tsang Chi Hin (“Mr. Tsang”) assumes the role of both
the chairman and the chief executive officer of the
Company. Mr. Tsang is the founder of the Group and is
responsible for business plans, strategies and policies. He
ensures that the Board acts in the best interests of the
Group and all key and appropriate issues are properly
briefed and discussed by the Board in order for the Board

functions effectively.

The role of chairman and chief executive officer of the
Group rests on the same individual which deviates from
the code provision in the CG Code of not having a clear
division of responsibilities. The Board is of the view that
this has not compromised accountability and independent
decision making because the independent non-executive
directors form the majority of the Board of which three
out of seven are independent and have free and direct
access to the Company’s external auditors and independent

professional advice when considered necessary.

Mr. Tsang is a substantial shareholder of the Group and
has considerable industry experience. He is motivated to
contribute to the growth and profitability of the Group.
The Board is of the view that it is in the best interests of
the Group to have an executive chairman so that the Board
can have the benefit of a chairman who is knowledgeable
about the business of the Group and is most capable to
guide discussions and brief the Board in a timely manner
on pertinent issues and developments to facilitate open

dialogue between the Board and the management.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was established on 12th
August 2005 comprising two independent non-executive
directors of the Company, namely Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy
(the chairman of the Committee) and Mr. Chan Ho Wabh,
Terence and an executive director of the Company, namely
Mr. Tsang Chi Hin.

The role and function of the remuneration committee
include the determination of the remuneration package of
all directors and senior management of the Company. The
principal elements of the Company remuneration package
may include basic salary, discretionary bonus and share
option. The determined guidelines are based on their skill,
knowledge and involvement in the Company’s affairs and
which are determined by reference to the Company’s
performance and profitability, as well as remuneration
benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market

conditions.

The remuneration committee will consult the chairman
who is also the chief executive officer about its proposals
relating to the remuneration of other executive directors
and senior management of the Company and have the
right to require the Company’s management to furnish any
remuneration related information from senior management

of the Company for the purposes of discharging its duties.

During the year under review, the remuneration committee
held two meetings on 12th August 2005 and 1st October
2005 respectively. Details of the attendance of the

remuneration committee meetings are as follows:

Members Attendance
Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy

(the chairman of the Committee) 2/2
Mr. Chan Ho Wah, Terence 2/2
Mr. Tsang Chi Hin 2/2

At the meeting on 12th August 2005, the remuneration
committee of the Company was established and the term
of reference of the Company was adopted. At the meeting
on 1st October 2005, the remuneration committee has
considered and reviewed the existing terms of employment
contracts of the executive directors and appointment letters
of the independent non-executive directors are fair and

reasonable.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee was established on 12th August
2005 comprising two independent non-executive directors
of the Company, namely Mr. Chan Ho Wah, Terence (the
chairman of the Committee) and Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy and
an executive director of the Company, namely, Mr. Tsang
Chi Hin.

The role and function of the nomination committee include
recommending the appointment and removal of Directors.
The nomination committee considers the past performance,
qualification, general market conditions and the Company’s
Bye-laws in selecting and recommending candidates for

directorship during the year under review.

During the year under review, a meeting of the nomination
committee was held on 12th August 2005. Details of the

attendance of the meeting are as follows:

Members Attendance
Mr. Chan Ho Wah, Terence

(the chairman of the Committee) 1/1
Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy 1/1
Mr. Tsang Chi Hin 1/1

During the meeting, the nomination committee was
established and the term of reference for the nomination
committee was adopted. The forthcoming nomination
committee meeting will be hold to review and discuss the
structure, size and composition of the board members and

the senior staffs of the Company.

AUDITORS” REMUNERATION

An amount of approximately HK$150,000 (2004:
HK$190,000) was charged to the Group’s consolidated
income statement for the year ended 31st December 2005
for the auditing services. There is no significant non-audit
service assignment provided by the auditors during the

year.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee on 3rd
May 2000 with written terms of reference which was
revised on 12th August 2005 to substantially the same as
the provisions as set out in the CG Code which became
effective for accounting periods commencing on or after
1st January 2005. The primary duties of the audit committee
are to review the Company’s annual report and accounts,
half-yearly and quarterly reports and to provide advice

and comments thereon to the Board.

The audit committee has reviewed the Company’s financial
statements for the year ended 31st December 2005 and
has provided advice and comments thereon. The audit

committee has met four times during the year.

The members of the audit committee, all being independent
non-executive directors, during the year are Mr. Leung
Lok Ming (the chairman of the Committee), Mr. Lo Wa
Kei, Roy, and Mr. Chan Ho Wah, Terence.

The audit committee held four meetings during the year
ended 31st December 2005. Details of the attendance of

the meeting are as follows:

Members Attendance
Mr. Yang Zhenhan

(resigned on 12th August 2005) 3/3
Mr. Leung Lok Ming

(the chairman of the Committee) 4/4
Mr. Lo Wah Kei, Roy 4/4
Mr. Chan Ho Wah

(appointed on 12th August 2005) 1/1

The Group’s unaudited quarterly and interim results and
annual audited results during the year ended 31st
December 2005 have been reviewed by the audit
committee, which was of the opinion that the preparation
of such results complied with the applicable accounting
standards and requirements and that adequate disclosure

have been.
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During the year under review, Horwath Hong Kong CPA
Limited tendered their resignation as auditors of the
Company with effect from 1st September 2005 due to the
failure by Horwath Hong Kong CPA Limited and the
Company in reaching a consensus on the auditors’
remuneration for the financial year ended 31st December
2005 and ShineWing (HK) CPA Limited was appointed as
auditors of the Company by the shareholders of the
Company at the extraordinary general meeting held on
14th October 2005.

The Board has not taken a different view from that of the
audit committee regarding the changes of the Auditors of

the Company as disclosed above.

DIRECTORS’
STATEMENTS

Annual Report and Financial Statements

RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare
financial statements for each financial year which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
in presenting the quarterly and annual financial statements,
and announcements to shareholders, the Directors aim to
present a balanced and understandable assessment of the

Group position and prospects.

Accounting Period

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial
statements, the Group uses appropriate accounting policies
that are consistently applied, and that all applicable

accounting standards are followed.

Accounting Records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group
keeps accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy the financial position of the Group and which
enable the preparation of financial statements in

accordance with the applicable accounting standards.

Going Concern

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider
that the Group has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future and that,
for this reason, its is appropriate to adopt the going concern

basis in preparing the financial statements.
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The Directors have the pleasure of presenting the annual
report together with the audited financial statements of
Proactive Technology Holdings Limited (“the Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) for the year
ended 31st December 2005.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. lIts
subsidiaries are principally engaged in investment holding,
design, development and sale of value-added
telecommunication products and computer telephony

products.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover by product range
together with its respective loss attributable to equity
holders of the parent for the year ended 31st December
2005 is as follows:
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CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31st December 2005, the five largest
customers accounted for approximately 42% of the Group’s
total turnover and the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for approximately 86% of the Group’s total
purchases. The largest customer of the Group accounted
for approximately 14% of the Group’s total turnover while
the largest supplier accounted for approximately 43% of

the Group’s total purchases.

During the year, none of the directors, their associates, or
any shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the Directors,
owned more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had
a beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers

and suppliers.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
Details of the Group’s results for the year ended 31st
December 2005 are set out in the consolidated income

statement on page 38 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31st December 2005 and
recommend that the accumulated losses of approximately
HK$43,651,000 as at 31st December 2005 be carried

forward.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS
Details of movements in share capital and share options
of the Company are set out in Notes 27 and 28,

respectively, to the accompanying financial statements.

RESERVES
Movements in reserves of the Group during the year are
set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

on page 40 of this annual report.

The Company had no reserves available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31st December 2005 (2004: Nil).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
shares during the year ended 31st December 2005 and up
to the date of this report.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the

Company’s Bye-laws and the laws in Bermuda.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATE
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries and the Group’s
associate are set out in Notes 34 and 17 to the

accompanying financial statements respectively.

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in machinery and equipment during
the year are set out in Note 15 to the accompanying

financial statements.

BANK BORROWINGS
Particulars of bank borrowings as at 31st December 2005
are set out in Note 25 to the accompanying financial

statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES
Details of the retirement benefits schemes are set out in

Note 31 to the accompanying financial statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
No charitable donation was made by the Group during
the year (2004: Nil).

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, there were no transactions which need to
be disclosed as connected and related party transactions
in accordance with the requirements of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange (“the GEM Listing Rules”)
and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong

Kong.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
The directors who held office during the year and up to

the date of this report are:

Executive directors

Mr. Tsang Chi Hin

Mr. Lam Kim Chau

Mr. Lau Kai Shun, Barry
Mr. Wong Wai Ho

Mr. Pong Kam Wah

Mr. Li Siu Ming

(resigned on 12th August 2005)

(resigned on 12th August 2005)
(appointed on 12th August 2005)
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Non-executive director
Mr. Chow Dah Jen, David (resigned on 17th February 2006)

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Yang Zhenhan (Resigned on 12th August 2005)
Mr. Robert Brainin (Resigned on 12th August 2005)
Issenman
Mr. Leung Lok Ming
Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy
Mr. Chan Ho Wabh,
Terence (appointed on 12th August 2005)
In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, Mr.
Tsang Chi Hin, Mr. Li Siu Ming and Mr. Leung Lok Ming
and Mr. Chan Ho Wah, Terence will retire from office
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-elections at the

forthcoming of Annual General Meeting.

Each of the executive directors of the Company has entered
into a service contract with the Company, for an initial
term of three years commencing from 25th February 2000
in the cases of Mr. Tsang Chi Hin, Mr. Lam Kim Chau and
Mr. Wong Wai Ho, and for an initial term of two years
commencing from 12th August 2005 in the case of Mr. Li
Siu Ming. The service contracts shall continue thereafter
until terminated by either party giving the other not less
than three months’ notice after the expiration of the said
initial fixed term. No termination notice has been given
by any party during the year and up to the date of this

report.

Each of the independent non-executive directors of the
Company has entered into a service contract with the
Company, for an initial term of two years commencing
and 1st July 2004 in the cases of Mr. Leung Lok Ming and
Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy and 12th August 2005 in the case of
Mr. Chan Ho Wah, Terence. The service contracts shall
continue thereafter until terminated by either party giving
the other not less than three months’ notice after the

expiration of the said initial fixed term.

None of the directors being proposed for re-elections at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which
is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment other than

of compensation statutory

compensation.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company confirms that it has received from each of
its independent non-executive directors a confirmation of
his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules and the Company considers that the independent

non-executive directors of the Company to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31st December 2005, the interests and short positions
of the directors and the chief executive officer of the
Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQ”)) as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant to Rule
5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:

Long position in ordinary shares of the Company
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Number of

underlying shares Approximate

Type of held pursuant to Aggregate percentage
Name of director interests Capacity ~ Number of shares share options interest of interest
BEERE
BEEZ
EEp ’REH HE FREA HERGEE BER BALAE
Mr. Tsang Chi Hin Personal Beneficial owner 52,415,466 1,000,000 53,415,466 23.02%
THEREE BAREE ERBAA
Mr. Lam Kim Chau Personal Beneficial owner 42,415,446 1,000,000 43,415,446 18.71%
MBI % & BA# R EafAA
Mr. Wong Wai Ho Personal Beneficial owner 10,210,688 1,000,000 11,210,688 4.83%
BEREHE BAREE EGBEAA
Mr. Li Siu Ming Personal Beneficial owner 657,119 - 657,119 0.28%
N D BAREE ERBAA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2005, none
of the directors or chief executives had interests or short
position in any shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations which
are required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing

Rules.
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DIRECTORS’
DEBENTURE

Save as disclosed under the headed “Directors’ Interests

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR

in Shares” above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or holding companies
a party to any arrangements to enable any of the
Company’s directors or members of its management to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debt securities (including debentures) of, the Company
or any other body corporate and none of the directors,
their spouse or their children under the age 18, had any
right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or

had exercised any such right during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
A summary of the share option scheme and details of the
movements in share options of the Company during the

year are set out on pages 85 to 86.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which any of the Company’s directors
or members of its management had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the year ended
31st December 2005 or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No

administration of the whole or any substantial part of the

contract concerning the management and

business of the Company was entered into or existed during

the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st December 2005, persons who have an interest
or a short position in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be

kept under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long position in ordinary shares of the Company
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Type of Percentage

Name of shareholders Number of shares Capacity interests  of interests
RREEEB FREE =1 #Em BIoLAE
Mr. Tsang Chi Hin 52,415,466 Beneficial owner Personal 23.02%
Eh ks BERmEAA & A
Mr. Lam Kim Chau 42,415,446 Beneficial owner Personal 18.71%
MRBIFR S £ EmEAA & A
Mr. Wu Wai Leung 27,000,000 Beneficial owner Held by controlled 11.64%
Wu Wai Leungst 4 BEnlER A corporation (Note)
Pacific Technology Partners L.P. 20,735,232 Investment manager Corporate 11.94%
REESHESEM AR & KR NG

EREEARES

Note: 27,000,000 shares are owned by Century Dragon
Development Limited (“Century Dragon”). Century
Dragon is a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and is wholly-owned by Mr. Wu Wai Leung.
By virtue of SFO, Mr. Wu Wai Leung was deemed to
be interested in these shares.

Same as disclosed above, at 31st December 2005, no other
shareholders or other persons had an interest or a short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
336 of the SFO.

BitiE : #%27,000,0008% A% {5 B3 Century Dragon
Development Limited ([ Century Dragon])
%A ° Century DragonE — /A 2 B E &
HEEMAZA AR - BBWu Wai Leungst
E2EHRE c REBEIESRBEGKRA - Wu
Wai Leungft &= #1810 5% 5 I 1) #E B #E

<

BEREEEN RTETERF+_A=+—
A & AE ] A T 7E A2 A AR 15 2k A8 B AR (5 #E
BREBEZHFRAERKIIEIZHERATEAFTENR
DA &M AT R ERAR -
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS
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COMPETING INTERESTS

Mr. Tsang Chi Hin is the chairman of the Group and a
director of Beijing Teletron Systems Integration Company
Limited which is also engaged in the provision of
telecommunications and computer telephony solutions. The
Directors believe that there is a risk that such business
may compete with those of the Group. However, the
Directors are also of the view that the invaluable
experience of Mr. Tsang in the telecommunications and
computer telephony industry will complement the

development of the Group’s business.

During the year, save as disclosed above, none of the
directors or the management shareholders of the Company
(as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) or any of their
respective associates had an interest in business which
competes or may compete with the business of the Group
or has any other conflict of interest which any such person

has or may have with the Group.

BOARD PRACTICE AND PROCEDURES

During the year ended 31st December 2005, the Company
was in compliance with the Board Practices and Procedures
as set out in Rules 5.34 to 5.45 of the GEM Listing Rules.
Except that from 1st July 2005, actions were taken to
comply with the Code which has become effective for
accounting periods commencing on or after 1st January
2005 to replace the Board Practices and Procedures as set
in Rules 5.35 to 5.45 of the GEM Listing Rules.

COMPLIANCE WITH RULES 5.48 TO 5.67 OF THE GEM
LISTING RULES

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by directors on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings as set out
in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules throughout
the year ended 31st December 2005. Having made specific
enquiry of all directors, the Company’s directors have
complied with its the required standard of dealings and
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by

directors.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the
Group announced in previous years are set out on pages
92 to 93 of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee on 3rd
May 2000 with written terms of reference which was
revised on 12th August 2005 to substantially the same as
the provisions as set out in the CG Code which became
effective for accounting periods commencing on or after
1st January 2005. The primary duties of the audit committee
are to review the Company’s annual report and accounts,
half-yearly and quarterly reports and to provide advice

and comments thereon to the Board.

The audit committee has reviewed the Company’s financial
statements for the year ended 31st December 2005 and
has provided advice and comments thereon. The audit

committee has met four times during the year.

The members of the audit committee, all being independent
non-executive directors, during the year are Mr. Leung
Lok Ming (the chairman of the Committee), Mr. Lo Wa
Kei, Roy, and Mr. Chan Ho Wah, Terence.

AUDITORS

The financial statements for the year 31st December 2005
were audited by ShineWing (HK) CPA Limited. A resolution
will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-

appoint them as the auditors of the Company.

Horwath Hong Kong CPA Limited tendered their resignation
as auditors of the Company with effect from 1st September
2005 and ShineWing (HK) CPA Limited was appointed as
auditors of the Company by the shareholders of the
Company at the extraordinary general meeting held on
14th October 2005.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31st December 2003 and 2004 were audited by Horwath
Hong Kong CPA Limited and there have been no other
changes of the auditors of the Company in the past three

years.

On behalf of the Board of Directors,
TSANG CHI HIN

Chairman

Hong Kong, 24th March 2006
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REPORT OF THE AUDITORS
RS

ferkPde|

Sﬁiﬂfﬂ}fﬂ?’,

To the shareholders of
Proactive Technology Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Proactive Technology Holdings Limited (“the Company”)
and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) from pages 38 to 91
which have been prepared in accordance with accounting

principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDITORS

The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements which give a true and
fair view. In preparing consolidated financial statements
which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that
appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied

consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion,
based on our audit, on those statements and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

FEANKEZERERATVZBRR
(RBERZZMEZZ HER A

BMEZKELEANKIERAERAFA(TER
A REMBEAR ([EEE]) TRE3BEIE
BREBLARGHRANBENGE M BE]ME -
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BHRE - EREZFEBERATFHNEAMBR
R EELAERRBAEMNSAEREK -

HMMEESRBERMATZ TENER - Hz
SEUBRERFELBLER - YRBEAREAR
EFIOFEMEBRREE LB REM
BE) - HMITERABREZATAEMA LA
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BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. An audit includes
examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant
estimates and judgments made by the directors in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements, and
of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the
circumstances of the Group, consistently applied and

adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all
the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence
to give reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the
consolidated financial statements. We believe that our audit

provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as
at 31st December 2005 and of its loss and cash flows of
the Group for the year then ended and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

ShineWing (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lau Miu Man
Practising Certificate Number: P03603

Hong Kong
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

FeB®ER

33

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2005 HZEZE-ZTZH&E+_A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LA#%3R)

2005 2004
“EZRF —TTME
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 BETT BETT
Turnover EEE (7) 20,982 17,515
Cost of sales HE KA (11,524 (9,386)
Gross profit E7 9,458 8,129
Other operating income H & R e 633 14
Distribution and selling DERHEER
expenses (34) (20)
General and administrative —BRTHER
expenses (11,536) (15,479)
Finance costs BEKAR 9) (87) (39)
Share of result of an associate A -UNCIE S (198) 198
Loss before tax REAER (10) (1,764) (7,197)
Income tax expenses G IIER X (13) - (51)
Loss for the year attributable to BRAIRERSE ARG
equity holders of the parent AEEER (1,764) (7,248)
Loss per share BRER (14)
Basic YN 0.8 cents 3.1 cents

T >
OOC
)
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET ‘ 3 9
REAEEBREX

AS AT 31ST DECEMBER 2005 R=-ZZHF+-_A=+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LA&%357R)

2005 2004
“EZRF —TEME
Notes HK$'000 HK$’'000
i BETT BETT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Machinery and equipment G ENE (15) 869 1,328
Development expenditures Bﬂ?‘gﬁ% (16) - -
Interest in an associate N -UNCI - (17) - 861
Available-for-sale financial asset —Jﬁi\ﬁ%/ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ (18) 286 -
Other investment Hiniz & (19) - 286
1,155 2,475
Current assets mEEE
Inventories BE (20) 293 1,831
Trade receivables & WU BR 3 (21) 1,940 2,461
Amount due from an associate FE OB & A R FRE (22) 706 -
Prepayments, deposits and BENRE  BeREM
other receivables JE Y 3178 (23) 708 1,219
Pledged bank deposits BERRTER (24) 2,000 5,002
Bank balances and cash BOERKES 6,549 4,761
12,196 15,274
Current liabilities mEE &
Short-term bank borrowings BHRTER (25) 1,086 874
Trade payables JE 1 BR 3R (26) 4 1,104
Accruals and other payables HREMREMENFE 2,153 3,127
Receipts in advance EWRIE 636 2,242
4,616 7,347
Net current assets REEEFE 7,580 7,927
Net assets AESE 8,735 10,402
Capital and reserves BAREE
Share capital R A (27) 23,200 23,200
Reserves s (14,465) (12,798)
Equity attributable to equity RERER B AERA
holders of the parent 2R 8,735 10,402

HNEBENAZHBERE  CHEFIN =

ZEERNFZAZTHHEHZAETRETIESER
March 2006 and are signed on its behalf by:— Ex=

The financial statements on pages 38 to 91 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24th

TSANG CHI HIN LAM KIM CHAU

B A& & R8I X
Chairman Director
3 a n n u
FE 2F S i b
2 0 0
F

"
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2005 HZEZE-ZTZH&E+_A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(A 5R)

Attributable to equity holders of the parent
BRARERAAERE
Exchange  Accumu-
Share Share Capital  translation lated
capital  premium reserve reserve losses Total
Bx  ROEE BARR  EXRK  RAER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETr  E¥%Trn  BETn BETR  AETR
(Note 29)
(Hf3E29)
At Tst January 2004 RZZEME-A-A 23,200 29,135 3,530 (37) (38,191) 17,637
Exchange differences BEBNEBEEY
arising on translation of ERZE
foreign operations - - - 13 - 13
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - (7,248) (7,248)
At 31st December 2004 RZZEME+-_A=+-H
and 1st January 2005 R-ZERF-F—H
As originally stated mEE23 23,200 29,135 3,530 (24)  (45,439) 10,402
Effect of changes in SIHRE IV E
accounting policies (FRME3)
(see Note 3) - - (3,530) - 3,530 -
As restated ER] 23,200 29,135 - (24) (41,909) 10,402
Loss for the year KEEER - - - - (1,764) (1,764)
Release of translation HERELARER
reserve on dissolve of 5
subsidiaries - - - 72 22 94
Exchange differences BEENRBELL
arising on translation of EXER
foreign operations - - - 3 - 3
At 31st December 2005 RZFZEET-A=+—H | 23200 29,135 - 51 (43,651) 8,735

annual
rep o r t
2 0 0 5
F E




CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FAERTREX

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2005 #HZE—ZZTHF+_A=+—HLFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(A ¥R )

2005 2004
“EZRF —ZIME
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT
Operating activities BEEY
Loss before tax BR AT E R (1,764) (7,197)
Adjustments for:— HE: -
Interest income FIEHEA (144) (14)
Finance costs BEKAR 87 39
Depreciation of machinery BERREZTE
and equipment 627 1,469
Net loss on disposal of machinery HERSIRBESE
and equipment ZERRE 22 75
Write off of development expenditures REERMH - 292
Share of result of an associate EEHERREE 198 (198)
Allowance for bad and doubtful AERER
receivables 698 161
Allowance for obsolete and RERGHESR
slow-moving inventories B 1,159 1,894
Operating cash flows before EEBECEBAI LS
movements in working capital Reng 883 (3,479)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BERD /(M) 229 (1,510)
(Increase)/decrease in trade FEWRR R (32 m) /RS
receivables (177) 527
Decrease in prepayments, deposits BAME ReRAM
and other receivables IR D 511 31
Increase in amount due from an associate B Bt 4 8 B IR E A (43) (429)
Decrease in trade payables JE 5 BR SORL (363) (53)
(Decrease)/increase in accruals and fﬁiﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁ‘r@ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂﬁ
other payables mD) /Em (974) 63
(Decrease)/increase in receipts in advance Tﬁqﬁlmlﬁ WD) /0 (1,606) 1,009
Cash used in operations BEEmEZR T (1,540) (3,841)
Interest paid ERFA (87) (39
Overseas taxes paid BB IMEE - (51)
Net cash used in operating activities BEEBHRL RS FHE (1,627) (3,931)

HN T
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FERETREX

42

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2005 HZEZE-ZTZH&E+_A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LA#%3R)

2005 2004
ZERRE —ZIME
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT
Investing activities REED
Decrease in pledged bank deposits BEEMRITHHAD 3,002 -
Purchase of machinery and equipment RERE KRR (45) (19
Proceeds on disposal of machinery HERBRRE
and equipments A 5 -
Interest received B WA S 144 14
Net cash from/(used in) REFHES/ (FifE) 2
investing activities BeFs 3,106 (5)
Cash from financing activity MEXBHELEZRT
Increase in trust receipts bank loans ERRERTEREM 95 167
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRReEEMEN/
cash equivalents CRD) %5 1,574 (3,769)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FENZRERREEEY
beginning of the year 4,368 8,124
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rate NBEXZHYE 97 13
Cash and cash equivalents at the FRZBERREEEY
end of the year 6,039 4,368
Cash and cash equivalents at RTZA=Z+t—RHZzR%
31st December, represented by:- FEEEED KK -
Bank balances and cash BOGFREES 6,549 4,761
Bank overdrafts BITEX (510) (393)
6,039 4,368

T >
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL

Proactive Technology Holdings Limited (“the
Company”) was incorporated in Bermuda on 25th
February 2000 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda. Its shares are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited since 18th May 2000.

The financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar, which is the same as the functional

currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company.
Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
investment holding, design, development and sale
of value-added telecommunications products and

computer telephony products.

LUl =
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
% WS M

APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the
first time, a number of new Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”),
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations

Hong Kong

(hereinafter collectively referred to as “new
HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) that are
effective for accounting periods beginning on or
after 1st January 2005. The application of the new
HKFRSs has resulted in a change in the presentation
of the consolidated income statement, consolidated
balance sheet, and consolidated statement of
changes in equity. In particular, the presentation
of minority interests and share of tax of an associate
have been changed. The changes in presentation
have been applied retrospectively. The adoption of
the new HKFRSs has resulted in changes to the
Group’s accounting policies in the following areas
that have an effect on how the results for the current
and prior accounting years are prepared and

presented:—

Business combinations

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS
3 “Business Combinations” which is effective for
business combinations for which the agreement date
is on or after 1st January 2005. The principal effects
of the application of HKFRS 3 to the Group are

summarised below:—

Excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value
of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over cost (previously known

as “negative goodwill”)

In accordance with HKFRS 3, any excess of the
Group’s interest in the net fair value of acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of acquisition (“discount on
acquisition”) is recognised immediately in profit or
loss in the year in which the acquisition takes place.
In previous years, negative goodwill arising on
acquisitions prior to 1st January 2001 was held in
reserves. In accordance with the relevant
transitional provisions in HKFRS 3, the Group
derecognised all negative goodwill on 1st January
2005, of which HK$3,530,000 was previously
recorded in reserves. A corresponding decrease to
the Group’s accumulated losses has been made (see

Note 3 for the financial impact).

2.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Financial instruments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKAS
32 “Financial Instruments: Disclosure and
Presentation” and HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement”. HKAS 32 requires
retrospective application. HKAS 39, which is
effective for accounting periods beginning on or
after 1st January 2005, generally does not permit
the recognition, derecognition or measurement of
financial assets and liabilities on a retrospective
basis. The application of HKAS 32 has had no
material impact on how financial instruments of
the Group are presented for current and prior
accounting periods. The principal effects resulting
from the implementation of HKAS 39 are

summarised below:—

Classification and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities

The Group has applied the relevant transitional
provisions in HKAS 39 with respect to classification
and measurement of financial assets and financial

liabilities that are within the scope of HKAS 39.

By 31st December 2004, the Group classified and
measured its debt and equity securities in
accordance with the benchmark treatment of
Statement of Standard Accounting Practice 24
(“SSAP 24”). Under SSAP 24, investments in debt
or equity securities are classified as “investment

nou

securities”, “other investments” or “held-to-maturity
investments” as appropriate. “Investment securities”
are carried at cost less impairment losses (if any)
while “other investments” are measured at fair
value, with unrealised gains or losses included in
profit or loss. “Held-to-maturity investments” are
carried at amortised cost less impairment losses (if
any). From Tst January 2005 onwards, the Group
has classified and measured its debt and equity
securities in accordance with HKAS 39. Under
HKAS 39, financial assets are classified as “financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss”,
“available-for-sale financial assets”, “loans and
receivables”, or “held-to-maturity financial assets”.
The classification depends on the purpose for which
the assets are acquired. “Financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss” and “available-for-sale.

2.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
% WS M

APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities (Continued)

financial assets” are carried at fair value, with
changes in fair values recognised in profit or loss
and equity respectively. Available-for-sale equity
investments that do not have quoted market prices
in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured and derivates that are linked
to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity instruments are measured at cost less
impairment after initial recognition. “Loans and
receivables” and “held-to-maturity financial assets”
are measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method after initial recognition.

On 1st January 2005, the Group classified and
measured its debt and equity securities in
accordance with the transitional provisions of HKAS
39. As a result, “other investment” amounted to
HK$286,000 has been classified as available-for-
sale financial assets on 1st January 2005 (see Note

3 for the financial impact).

Financial assets and financial liabilities other than
debt and equity securities

From 1st January 2005 onwards, the Group has
classified and measured its financial assets and
financial liabilities other than debt and equity
securities (which were previously outside the scope
of SSAP 24) in accordance with the requirements
of HKAS 39. As mentioned above, financial assets
under HKAS 39 are classified as “financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss”, “available-for-
sale financial assets”, “loans and receivables” or
“held-to-maturity financial assets”. Financial
liabilities are generally classified as “financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss” or
“other financial liabilities”. Financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are measured at
fair value, with changes in fair value being
recognised in profit or loss directly. “Other financial
liabilities” are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method after initial recognition.
The Group has applied the relevant transitional
provisions in HKAS 39. However, there has been
no material effect on how the results for the current

accounting year are prepared and presented.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)
Share-based payments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS
2 “Share-based Payment” which requires an
expense to be recognised where the Group buys
goods or obtains services in exchange for shares or
rights over shares (“equity-settled transactions”), or
in exchange for other assets equivalent in value to
a given number of shares or rights over shares
(“cash-settled transactions”). The principal impact
of HKFRS 2 on the Group is in relation to the
expensing of the fair value of share options granted
to directors and employees of the Company,
determined at the date of grant of the share options,
over the vesting period. Prior to the application of
HKFRS 2, the Group did not recognise the financial
effect of these share options until they were
exercised. The Group has applied HKFRS 2 to share
options granted on or after 1st January 2005. In
relation to share options granted before 1st January
2005, the Group chooses not to apply HKFRS 2
with respect to share options granted on or before
7th November 2002 and vested before 1st January
2005. The application of HKFRS 2 has had no
material impact on how financial instruments of
the Group are presented for current and prior

accounting years.

2.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LUl O I

SUMMARY OF THE EFFECTS OF CHANGES IN

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The cumulative effects of the application of the

ENBREINVERE
RANESNHRELANHR —FEN
F+-A=t+—AR-BERF—A—

new HKFRSs on 31st December 2004 and 1st BMEEBBREENRAZERIIN
January 2005 are summarised below:— T =
As at As at
31st December 2004 Prospective 1st January 2005
(originally stated) adjustments (restated)
RZZZNF R-Z2E%
TEHET=[ -A-H
(REZ25) BERZARAE (E3)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BB BB BB
HKFRS 3 HKAS 39
EBHBRE BBt
BRI EBIE3R
Other investment ERE 286 - (286) -
Available-for-sale financial asset MRHERBEE = S 286 286
Other assets/liabilities AEE/AE 10,116 - - 10,116
Total effects on assets and liabilities HEERABEZ HEYE 10,402 - - 10,402
Share capital A 23,200 = = 23,200
Accumulated losses ZitE#E (45,439) 3,530 = (41,909)
Capital reserve EARE 3,530 (3,530) = =
Other reserves Etb it 29,111 = = 29,111
Total effects on equity HEGZzAEYE 10,402 - - 10,402




SUMMARY OF THE EFFECTS OF CHANGES IN Sh

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new
standards and interpretations that have been issued
but are not yet effective. The directors of the

Company anticipate that the application of these

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % WS M

B BREBNCERE (B)

REEWEREFRAIA T LS BMIE
%Exﬁlzéﬂfﬁﬁﬂ (- ARAEERR

CERBATHERRREF TSN
ﬂ%‘}zﬁ’ilzﬁﬂ‘kﬁiﬁiikgio

standards or interpretations will have no or any

material impact on the financial statements of the

Group.

HKAS 1 (Amendment)

BB ERE 15 (BFTA)
HKAS 19 (Amendment)
BB ST ERIE 1958 (&
HKAS 21 (Amendment)
BERGTERE 2158 (&
HKAS 39 (Amendment)

AIA)

AIA)

BERE G ERIE 395 (&
HKAS 39 (Amendment)
BB ST ERIFEI99 (BRI A)
HKAS 39 & HKFRS 4 (Amendments)
BB G EREIR K
B E 2RI E 455 (
HKFRS 6
BEERBHRE
HKFRS 7
BB HREERE75R
HK(FRIC)-Int 4
BEX(ERVEARAEZE ) RBFIN
HK(IFRIC)-Int 5

A7)

ERTA)

o}

£E Al 5 65

S

FH(BRUMERRREZE ) REFSR
HK(FRIC)-Int 6

TR (BBRMERRREZES) RBFEN
HK(IFRIC)-Int 7

T (BB ERRREZE®) REBEE7R

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or U

after 1st January 2007.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or 2

after 1st January 2006.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or 2

after 1st December 2005.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or 4

after 1st March 2006.

Capital Disclosures’

BRI

Actuarial Gains or Losses, Group Plans and Disclosures?

fEEED  KEES R E?

Net Investment in a Foreign Operation?

BN E TSI E F R

Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of Forecast Intragroup
Transactions?

FAEERNRERZ2REREL PSR

The Fair Value Option?

Mgz N F(EE?

Financial Guarantee Contracts?

M ERA 42

%2

Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources?
MBEEIRZ BRER G2
Financial Instruments: Disclosures’
SERIA : RE
Determining whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease?
ErxERAReHE?
Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning,
Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds?
BRBEE ERMREECEESCESLER ZERN?
Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific Market,
Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment?
DQEBFEMSHELEZABE -—FEH  BEHREFRE
Applying the Restatement Approach under HKAS 29
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies*
BIEEEGFEINF 2R BUEBREWREES Z
75 RS PR E A

R_ZTELF—A—HaEE&RMR
ZEEHRER
R-ZTERF—A—HaE&RMR
ZEEHBER
R_ZEERF+-HA—HHEEKR
1 2 F R B AR
R_ZTEXRF=A—HaE &R
ZEEHRER



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
% WS M

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis, except for
certain financial instruments, which are measured
at fair values, as explained in the accounting

policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

(a) Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the

Company and its subsidiaries.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated income statement from the
effective date of acquisition or up to the

effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to
the financial statements of subsidiaries to
bring their accounting policies into line with

those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances,
income and expenses are eliminated on

consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Excess of an acquirer’s interest in the net
fair value of an acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over cost (“discount on acquisitions”)

A discount on acquisition arising on an
acquisition of a subsidiary or an associate
for which an agreement date is on or after
1st January 2005 represents the excess of
the net fair value of an acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of the business
combination. Discount on acquisition is
recognised immediately in profit or loss. A
discount on acquisition arising on an
acquisition of an associate (which is
accounted for using the equity method) is
included as income in the determination of
the investor’s share of results of the associate
in the year in which the investment is

acquired.

As explained in note 3 above, all negative
goodwill as at Tst January 2005 has been
derecognised with a corresponding
adjustment to the Group’s accumulated

losses.

Investments in associates

The results and assets and liabilities of
associates are incorporated in these financial
statements using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in associates are carried in the
consolidated balance sheet at cost as
adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and of
changes in equity of the associate, less any
identified When the

Group’s share of losses of an associate

impairment loss.
equals or exceeds its interest in that
associate (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. An additional share of losses
is provided for and a liability is recognised
only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or

made payments on behalf of that associate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LUl O I

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Investments in associates (Continued)

Where a group entity transacts with an

associate of the Group, profits and losses

are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s

interest in the relevant associate.

Revenue recognition

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Revenue from the

supply,
development and integration of
telecommunication and computer
telephony systems

the

Revenue from

supply,
development and integration of
telecommunication and computer
telephony systems is recognised
when the merchandise is delivered
and the related development and
integration services are completed.

Rental income from leasing of
telecommunication and computer
telephony equipment

Rental income from leasing of
telecommunication and computer
telephony equipment is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the

respective period of the leases.

Consulting and maintenance service

fees

Consulting and maintenance service
fees are recognised when the services

are rendered.

Interest income from a financial asset

Interest income from a financial asset
is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding
and at the interest rate applicable,
which

discounts the estimated future cash

is the rate that exactly

receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net

carrying amount.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of

the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on
taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from profit as reported in the income
statement because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by

the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base
used in the computation of taxable profit,
and is accounted for using the balance sheet
liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be
which deductible

temporary differences can be utilised. Such

available against
assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the

accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and an associate,
except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference

will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

()

(g)

(h)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
is reviewed at each balance sheet date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset

to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the year when
the liability is settled or the asset is realised.
Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit
or loss, except when it relates to items
charged or credited directly to equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also dealt

with in equity.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised as and
included in finance costs in the income
statement in the year in which they are

incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme and state-managed retirement
benefit scheme are charged as expense as

they fall due.

Machinery and equipment
Machinery and equipment are stated at cost
and

less accumulated depreciation

accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost
of items of machinery and equipment over
their estimated useful lives and after taking
into account of their estimated residual
value, using the straight-line method, at the

following rates per annum:—

Furniture, fixtures and

office equipment 20%
Computer equipment 30%
Equipment on lease to customers 30%
Equipment for development 30%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

(i)

Machinery and equipment (Continued)

An item of machinery and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in
the income statement in the year in which

the item is derecognised.

Research and development expenditures
Expenditure on research activities is
recognised as expense in the year in which

it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset
arising from development expenditure is
recognsied only if it is anticipated that the
development costs incurred on a clearly-
defined project will be recovered through
future commercial activity. The resultant
asset is amortised on a straight-line basis
over its useful life, and carried at cost less
amortisation and

accumulated any

accumulated impairment losses.

Where no internally-generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is charged to profit or loss in

the year in which it is incurred.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are
tested for impairment when there is an

indication that an asset may be impaired.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised on the balance sheet when a
group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified
into one of the four categories, including
financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-
maturity investments and available-for-sale
financial assets. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or
The

accounting policies adopted in respect of

convention in the marketplace.

each category of financial assets are set out

below.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Financial instruments (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. At each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables including trade receivables,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables
are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses. An impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest
rate. Impairment losses are reversed in
subsequent periods when an increase in the
asset’s recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, subject to a
restriction that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not

been recognised.
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4.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LUl O I

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Financial instruments (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are
investments in unlisted equity securities
which are intended to be held for a
continuing strategic or long term purpose
and are stated at fair value, except for those
equity securities that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured, when
they are measured at cost less any

accumulated impairment losses.

In respect of available-for-sale financial
assets carried at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses, when there is objective
evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an investment, the carrying
amount of the investment should be reduced
to the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset and
the amount of the impairment is charged to
the income statement in the year in which
it arises. Any impairment losses recognised
shall not be reversed.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
issued by a group entity are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an

equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the group after deducting all of its liabilities.
The Group’s financial liabilities are generally
classified into financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss and other
financial liabilities. The accounting policies
adopted in respect of financial liabilities and

equity instruments are set out below.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

(k)

M

Financial instruments (Continued)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including bank
borrowings, trade payables, accruals and
other payables and receipts in advance are
subsequently measured at amortised cost,

using the effective interest rate method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received, net

of direct issue costs.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Share options granted to employee of the
Company
The fair

determined by reference to the fair value of

value of services received
share options granted at the grant date is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, with a corresponding

increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the time when the share options are
exercised, the amount previously recognised
in share option reserve will be transferred
to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will

continue to be held in share option reserve.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is calculated

using the first-in, first-out method.
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4.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(m)

(n)

(o)

LUl O I

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to
determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered impairment
loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as expense

immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is
increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised

as income immediately.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group
has a present obligation as a result of a past
event, and it is probable that the Group will
be required to settle that obligation.
Provisions are measured at the directors’ best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the obligation at the balance sheet date, and
are discounted to present value where the

effect is material.

Leases

Rentals payable under operating leases are
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an
incentive to enter into an operating lease
are recognised as a reduction of rental
expense over the lease term on a straight-

line basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in
currencies other than the functional currency
of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in its functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At each balance
sheet date, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the balance sheet date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency

are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the
settlement of monetary items, and on the
translation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the year in which they
arise, except for exchange differences arising
on a monetary item that forms part of the
Group’s net investment in a foreign
operation, in which case, such exchange
differences are recognised in equity in the
consolidated financials statements. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are
included in profit or loss for the year except
for differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items in respect of which
gains and losses are recognised directly in
equity, in which cases, the exchange

differences are also recognised directly in

equity.
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4.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
% WS M

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(p) Foreign currencies (Continued)
For the purposes of presenting the
consolidated financial statements, the assets
and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company (i.e.
Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date, and
their income and expenses are translated at
the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the year, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised as a separate component
of equity (the translation reserve). Such
exchange differences are recognised in profit
or loss in the year in which the foreign

operating is disposed of.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the process of applying the entity’s accounting
policies which are described in note 4, management
has made the following judgments that have
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements. The key assumptions
concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are also

discussed below.

Depreciation

The Group’s net book value of machinery and
equipment as at 31st December 2005 was
approximately HK$869,000. The Group depreciates
the machinery and equipment on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful life of three to five
years, and after taking into account of their
estimated residual value, using the straight-line
method, at the rate of 20 - 30% per annum,
commencing from the date the equipment is placed
into productive use. The estimated useful life and
dates that the Group places the equipment into
productive use reflects the directors’ estimate of
the periods that the Group intend to derive future
economic benefits from the use of the Group’s

machinery and equipment.

4.

EFBREHEE (B

(p) shis (48)
REFGEMBHRERME - A%
BB KB 2 BERBELIZE
HEAEXRBERARARZ 27
B OB MREZWRAR
MXBEEDRFEFHEERK
H o KRIFFAEERHBEERNN
® - BIREERT @ #RARS
B2 B o By E AT 5 Z R (40
B) AHER R A 5 2 58 AR
fn (EXFERE) - BRAELZERN
Z BB ETS B BARE A a A 3k
BB R o

BREHHEREGHFTEEREN
FEZRIR

RERERZ IR (K457
B BREMFED TIHERBERERPE
RZBEELIEATEZHIE - PR
HRZEZMRRENEH B G T HEE
ARzZEMEBZRR(REDHEBEEHRT
B BRFEZEERBBEZREELR
ANIEFHE 2 EBRER) R wmET o

e

AEER_ZTTERF+_A=+—HBH
HEs R R BEEIFEL R E%869,000
T AEBUEMEHEMRREBHER
HEEAERAEH ="ERFAT U
E St REMGHESKER  RAER
SELAE R 2 20-30% @ HREHRALEZ
BRBETE - st rlERFHRAEER
BB AEEZ BT RMEE R %
HAR A Z 5T - BN B 51 8115 2k 1 i
RRBEZERARAERZEERNE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Allowances for bad and doubtful debts

The policy for allowance of bad and doubtful debts
of the Group is based on the evaluation of
collectability and aging analysis of accounts and
on management’s judgment. A considerable amount
of judgment is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, including the
current creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each customer. If the financial conditions
of customers of the Group were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make

payments, additional allowances may be required.

Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews an aging
analysis at each balance sheet date, and makes
allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventory
items identified that are no longer suitable for sales.
The management estimates the net realisable value
for such finished goods based primarily on the latest
invoice prices and current market conditions. The
Group carries out an inventory review on a product-
by-product basis at each balance sheet date and

makes allowance for obsolete items.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include
trade receivables, prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, bank borrowings, trade payables,
accruals and other payables and receipts in
advance. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Currency risk

Certain receivables and payables of the Group are
denominated in foreign currencies. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the

need arises.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
% WS M

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through
the impact of rate changes on interest bearing bank

borrowings.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
the event of the counterparties failure to perform
their obligations as at 31st December 2005 in
relation to each class of recognised financial assets
is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in
the consolidated balance sheet. In order to minimise
the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
trade receivables at each balance sheet date to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s

credit risk is significantly reduced.
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TURNOVER a o am
Turnover comprises:— EEERRE - —
2005 2004
ZZERE —TTWE
HK$'000 HK$’000
BETR BETT
Sales of goods HEE M 9,690 4,441
Rental income from leasing of HEEAREMEARE
telecommunication and ZHEWA
computer telephony
equipment 1,294 2,692
Service fees income 53-8 0N 9,998 10,382
20,982 17,515




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The primary segment is defined by major product

and operational units, while secondary segment is

defined by geographical location of customers.

(a)

Primary segment
The Group is organised into two products
and operational units — telecommunications
products and computer telephony products.
The telecommunications products and
computer telephony products units derive
revenue from supply, development and
integration of telecommunications and
computer telephony system and solutions,
respectively. They also earn rental income
from leasing telecommunications
equipments and computer telephony systems
fees for

and earn consulting and

maintenance services.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
% WS M

06

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. DEER (B
(@) Primary segment (Continued) (a) BEER (48)

REBDBEOFWAT @ —

Analysis by business segment is as follows:—

(]

s T

2005 2004
—g%ng —TEmE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BETFT
Turnover X
— Telecommunications —E#f 7,228 6,961
— Computer telephony -ENEF 13,754 10,554
20,982 17,515
Segment results DEEE
— Telecommunications -8 2,242 545
- Computer telephony —BHE: 4,034 2,852
6,276 3,397
Unallocated corporate APECERX
expenses (7,805) (10,767)
(1,529) (7,370)
Interest income FEMA 144 14
Finance costs BEKAE (87) (39)
Net loss on write-off of MEBENB AR 2
deregistered subsidiaries BRFRE (94) -
Share of result of an associate  JE{f B & A 7] ¥ & (198) 198
Loss before tax B A1 ES 1B (1,764) (7,197)
Income tax expenses ERERX - (51)
Loss for the year AEEBR (1,764) (7,248)
Other information:— HtEH - —
Depreciation of machinery BERREZE
and equipment
— Telecommunications -8 388 754
- Computer telephony -ENEE 80 184
— Unallocated RNk 159 531
627 1,469
Capital expenditures of BERRXEZ
machinery and equipment BARX
— Telecommunications - &l 21 -
- Computer telephony —BHER - -
— Unallocated -RHE 24 19
nu al 45 19
p or t
0 5
E
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LUl =

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. DEER (B)
(@) Primary segment (Continued) (a) BEHER (48)
2005 2004
“EEZRF —TTME
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETR AETT
Allowance for bad and AEEEE
doubtful receivables
— Telecommunications £l 255 6
~ Computer telephony -BNE; 433 415
— Unallocated -RHE 10 (260)
698 161
Allowance for obsolete and ~ BRE R EHEFE
slow-moving inventories BE
— Telecommunications -E: 335 (16)
~ Computer telephony -~ EMEF 97 573
- Unallocated v 727 1,337
1,159 1,894
Net loss on disposal of HERBRRELZ
machinery and equipment BREFRE
— Telecommunications —-E: 1 75
~ Computer telephony —EMEF 1" -
- Unallocated Nl - -
22 75

o/

HN T

(]

T >

OOC

)

"

59U+ —



aoe

D >

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
% WS M

03

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(a) Primary segment (Continued)

Analysis by business segment is as follows:—

8.

DEER (E)
(a) BEER (&)

REBDBEOFWAT @ —

2005 2004
“EZnF —TTME
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETR BB
Segment assets AEEE
— Telecommunications —-8: 1,389 3,863
-~ Computer telephony - ERER 2,549 1,772
Interest in an associate iN AN ¥ - 861
Unallocated corporate assets KA EEEEE 9,413 11,253
Consolidated total assets REAELE 13,351 17,749
Segment liabilities NEAE
— Telecommunications -8 1,134 3,337
— Computer telephony -ERES 1,406 1,892
Unallocated corporate AOBRGEAR
liabilities 2,076 2,118
Consolidated total liabilities 4 A B EE%E 4,616 7,347

T >
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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09

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. DEER (B
(b) Secondary segment (b) R B
Analysis by geographical location is as REFPHBEISBITOAT : —
follows:—
2005 2004
ZETIHF “TImE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BB
Turnover 3
- Hong Kong -&E 20,796 17,228
— The People’s Republic —hEARLM
of China (“PRC") (TehE]) 186 171
- Taiwan -RE - 116
20,982 17,515
2005 2004
ZZERE “TImE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BET T BB
Segment assets NEEE
- Hong Kong -&# 11,212 14,803
- PRC —HE 2,139 2,946
13,351 17,749
Additions to machinery and ~ HRE# & kR E
equipment
- Hong Kong -5 24 17
- PRC — I 21 2
45 19
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. [ES=go %N

ZARBREANTFNBBER ZRITE
X RAEFEYPIRRITER ©

The amount represents interest on bank overdrafts
and trust receipt bank loans wholly repayable within

five years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
% WS M

10.  LOSS BEFORE TAX 10. KRBAIEIE
2005 2004
—BERf e Jufa3
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BETT
Loss before tax has been arrived at BB A EEE MR/ (GrA)
after charging/(crediting):— TFER : —
Staff costs including directors’ BIRE  BREEME
emoluments (Note 11):- (HzE11) : —
Salaries and allowances &2 5,800 7,950
Contributions to retirement RORAE M5t 81650
benefits scheme 212 293
Less: Amount included in research & : BEEHRERAE
and development ERZEE
expenditures - (557)
6,012 7,686
Auditors’ remuneration ZE0RT B
- current year -KEE 153 190
— over-provision in previous year -~ XEHRARG (47) -
Research and development expenditures #%% [ # % & A - 849
Depreciation of machinery BERREZTE
and equipment 627 1,469
Allowance for bad and doubtful REREE
receivables 698 161
Minimum lease payments under RELLEHZRE
operating leases EEARDS 622 1,205
Net loss on disposal of machinery HERBRRELZ
and equipment ERFE 22 75
Allowance for obsolete and RERBHER
slow-moving inventories BE 1,159 1,894
Cost of inventories recognised BRRAXZ
as an expense HERA 10,934 8,246
Write-off of development expenditures [ % & F #f &8 - 292
Net exchange loss EREERE 8 18
Net loss on write-off of deregistered MERENB AR EEFE
subsidiaries 94 -
Interest income MEKA (144) (14)
Rental income from leasing of HESHAREREARE
telecommunication and computer ZHEWA
telephony equipment (1,294 (2,692)

annual
r e p o r t
2 0 0 5
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % WS M

/1

11.  DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 11. EZSEME
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 11 BAREMTF1I1Z(ZETMHEF : 108)
(2004: 10) directors were as follows:— Zx@ERzME2mT : —
2005 2004
—EZRE —TTNE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETR AETT
Executive Directors:— HITES : —
Fees we - -
Salaries and other benefits (Note (i) Fm & E A (BT ) 1,933 2,428
Contributions to retirement RN FIFT B
benefits scheme 52 60
1,985 2,488
Independent Non-Executive Directors:i- B HEHITES © —
Fees e 74 70
2,059 2,558
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B % 3| 5 M EE
11.  DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 1. EBME (E)
Note:— et - —
(i) Other benefits include housing allowance. (i) H At A B E B E R o
One director (2004: One director) waived his BHE_ZZRFR_TZEWNF+ =
emoluments in the years ended 31st December A=+t—BLHFE —RBEH (=
2005 and 2004. No incentive payment for TEPE  —FBER) NERRE
joining the Group or compensation for loss of B - FA - NEELEDNHE
office was paid or payable to any director for NFEFMERERMBAREERZ 2
the year. JBh < ok B B4R 1E -
The details of directors’ remuneration of each BREFRBEE_ZEZRFR_ZZNF
director for the years ended 31st December 2005 TZTA=T—HIEFERBRZEETEHE
and 2004 are set out below:— WmE =
2005
“EEIE
Contributions to
Non-executive Executive retirement
directors’ directors’ Housing henefits
Name of director fees salaries allowance scheme Total
FHTES EIER
EEfZ BE  BOESEHH EERE HE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT ERTR AR BETT BT
Tsang Chi Hin g5 - 264 198 1 474
Lam Kim Chau HElik - 487 - 12 499
Lau Kai Shun, Barry (Note 3) B (B 2E3) - 196 - 8 204
Wong Wai Ho EER - 270 - " 281
Pong Kam Wah (Note 3) RHE (M3) - 478 - 7 485
Li Siu Ming (Note 1) Z e (M) - 40 - 2 42
Yang Zhenhan (Note 2&3) BixE (fE2R3) 12 - - - 12
Robert Brainin Issenman &R
(Note 283) GEFVE) 14 - - - 14
Chan Ho Wah, Terence ks
(Note 1&2) (P&E1 R 2) 8 - - - 8
Leung Lok Ming (Note 2) 248 (ffizE2) 20 - - - 20
Lo Wa Kei, Roy (Note 2) BEE (fizk2) 20 - - - 20
Chow Dah Jen, David (Note 4)  EIAE (Ji34) - - - - -
74 1,735 198 52 2,059
Notes: i aE:
1. Appointed on 12th August 2005. (E R_ZTZTRFNA+_AEZRIE -
2. The employees are independent non-executive 2 BEABBIIFNTES -
directors. 3, RZZEZRAFNA+ZBBE -
3. Resigned on 12th August 2005. 4. R-ZBTRFE_ATLHBE
4. Resigned on 17th February 2006.




11.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % WS M

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 1. ESBM< (&)
2004
—EIRE
Contributions
Non-executive Executive to retirement
directors’ directors’ Housing benefits
Name of director fees salaries allowance scheme Total
FHTES RIKER
Bty #e HAEZHH FERK SRR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT RETT RETT
Tsang Chi Hin B - 264 215 12 491
Lam Kim Chau alik - 549 - 12 561
Lau Kai Shun, Barry AR - 320 - 12 332
Wong Wai Ho 2EF - 300 - 12 312
Pong Kam Wah BHE - 780 = 12 792
Yang Zhenhan (Note 1) BixE (k) 20 - - - 20
Robert Brainin Issenman NER (M)
(Note 1) 20 = = = 20
Wu Suk Ching, Annie N
(Note 1 & 2) (zE1R2) 10 - = = 10
Leung Lok Ming (Note 1) 228 (M) 10 - - - 10
Lo Wa Kei, Roy (Note 1) BEE (f3k1) 10 = = = 10
Chow Dah Jen, David BAE = = = - =
70 2,213 215 60 2,558

Notes:

The employees are independent non-executive

directors.

Resigned on 12th May 2004.

BERBIIFNITESE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
% WS M

12.

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

During the year, the five highest paid individuals
included three directors (2004: four directors) of
the Company, whose emoluments have been
included in note (11) above. However, one of the
three highest paid executive directors of the
Company resigned and remained as an employee

of the Group during the year, whose emoluments

12.

EEME

RAFERN AR AEHZRSHFALE
B=28%(CZZTNF : IEKES) -
HM &N EXME0D) - A - AR
A=Z2REFHATEETAELP —BRF
ERHELE TMEAKEES -  HiERE
FUWE B2 BN EXREONT) » =5
(BEBEES) (ZZZTOF : —FR) A

as directors are set out in note (11) above. The TR zBMEHT : —

emoluments of the three (including the resigned
directors) (2004: one) individuals were as follows:—

2005 2004

—EZZIE —ETME

HK$’000 HK$’000

BETR BETFT

Salaries and allowances B R 1,386 397
Contributions to retirement RARGEFIET B3R

benefits scheme 34 12

1,420 409

During the year, no emoluments were paid to the
five highest paid individuals (including directors
and other employees) as inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of

office.

Their emoluments were within the following
bands:—

MARFEERN - WEE R

e AL (R

REENEMES) B ARSI E
AREE LN IMBAREERERREBS

EBERLAE(E -

BEZMENFATEHRE : —

No. of employees

2005 2004
=i “RERE

HK$/000 HK$'000

BETT BETT

- Nil to HK$1,000,000 —EZHH1,000,0007 3 1
- HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 —7%1,000,001 7T E % % 1,500,0007C - -
3 1




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSES

(a)

Income tax expenses consisted of:—

LUl =

13. FiISHERX

(a)

FIEHEREE  —

2005 2004

—EEIF —TTNEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BETR BETT

PRC income tax B TSR - 51

The Company is not subject to tax in
Bermuda on its assessable profits or capital
gains until March 2016. Hong Kong profits
tax has not been provided as the Group had
no assessable profits arising in nor derived
from Hong Kong. Overseas income tax has
been provided by subsidiaries based on their
estimated taxable profits at the rates of
taxation applicable in the respective

jurisdictions in which they operate.

The tax charge for the years can be
reconciled to the loss per the consolidated

income statement as follows:—

ZN/NG i R NG N R 3
REMBEBRERABE TN
FZARIE - ARAKNEEARA
BFEEBELEIRE ZAEFER
Blm Al - FTARE REBEARREH
EITEE - BIHINHRIAHKB AR
RARE b 5 SR BUR A I IR E &
EZRNERER AN ZE R RETT
B -

AEEHALHAGAEREY
BEHENT : —

2005 2004
“EZnF —ZIME
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BB
Loss before tax BRI ES 1B (1,764) (7,197)
Tax at the domestic income — RASMFTEHIE17.5%
tax rate of 17.5% fHEZBE (309) (1,259)
Tax effect of expenses not kit
deductible for tax purpose KT E 1,182 -
Tax effect of income not BRERBBAZ
taxable for tax purpose hiBye (916) -
Tax effect of tax losses and ~ RERHBEER
other temporary differences ~ EHE R £ 2
not recognised KT E 38 1,259
Effect of different tax rates of R TFEAEER
subsidiaries operating in BEMERAZ
other jurisdictions TAREZZE 5 51
Tax charge for the year AEEHBXH - 51
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
% WS M

13.

14.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued) 13.  FABHEMX (&)

(c) The principal components of the Group’s (c) AEBRERBENEEELERIA
deferred tax assets not provided for, on the EERBRBEREZHENEHER
cumulative temporary differences at the FELT : —
balance sheet date are as follows:—

Other

temporary Estimated
differences tax losses Total
Hib g fEst B st

£5 BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BETT BB
At 1st January 2004 RZZZWNE—-A—H 457 5,254 5,711
Movement for the year FREY (166) 1,012 846

At 31st December 2004 and R=ZZZWE+-_A=1+—HK

1st January 2005 RZZZR¥-A—-H 291 6,266 6,557
Movement for the year FREH 34 4 38
At 31st December 2005 R-FFRFEF-A=1+—H 325 6,270 6,595

No potential tax benefit and other temporary
differences attributable to tax losses of the
Group has been recognised due to
unpredictability of future profit streams
(2004: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share for the year
is based on the loss for the year attributable to
equity holders of the parent of approximately
HK$1,764,000 (2004: HK$7,248,000) and the
weighted average of 232,000,000 (2004:
232,000,000) ordinary shares in issue during the

year.

No diluted loss per share have been presented for
two years ended 31st December 2005 and 2004 as
there were no diluting events existed during those

years.

14.

A5 B 3 M AE SR R % B B 4R
MELEMEERREEREM
BREZR WA NKEEE
% 3R B A SRR (Z EE 4
&) °

BREIE
REBZBREXRNEBDIUAAFEZR
AIRAERS B A (BB 411,764,000
T (ZZEZWF - B%7,248,0007T) LA
ERFEEETEBRZNEFLHRE
232,000,000/ (= & & @ F
232,000,0000%) 5+ & -

HREBEE_ZERAFR_ZFETMFE+_
A=+—RUEmBEFEABERLEALE
EREZEM  RAB2IZMEFE
0 R EE AR -



15.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % WS M

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT 15. HEER®
Furniture,
fixtures Equipment Equipment
and office Computer on lease to for
equipment equipment customers development Total
fil- %BR
HAERE Bk  ATEPZEE RERE a3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BB EETT BB BB
Cost A
At Tst January 2004 R-ZEME-A-A 1,190 3,382 3233 2,390 10,195
Additions AE 2 11 3 - 19
Disposals hE (142 (14 (366) (377) (899)
Transferred from inventories £EEEE = 203 1,023 24 1,250
Transferred to inventories £ETRE - (195) (1,632 (363) (2,190)
At 315t December 2004 and RZZEMETZA=+-H
1t January 2005 R-ZZR%-F-H 1,050 3,387 2,264 1,674 8,375
Additions RE 32 13 = = 45
Disposals HE - - (271) = (271)
Transferred from inventories HEERE - 114 112 377 603
Transferred to inventories £ELRE - (8) (1,258) (728) (1,994)
Reclassification ENAE - 36 = (36) -
At 315t December 2005 RZZEREFZA=1-0 1,082 3,542 847 1,287 6,758
Accumulated depreciation 2itirE
At 1t January 2004 RZETME-A-H 840 2,825 2,193 1,810 7,668
Charge for the year AEEAR 216 401 506 346 1469
Written back on disposals HERED (76) (6) (366) (376) (824)
Transferred to inventories #EshE = (9) (945) (312) (1,266)
At 315t December 2004 RZZEME+ZA=1-H
and 1st January 2005 k=Z%1%-A-H 980 3,21 1,388 1,468 7,047
Charge for the year AEEAR 7 15 256 147 627
Written back on disposals HERER - - (244) - (244)
Transferred to inventories £ESEE = - (1,036) (505) (1,541)
Reclassification ENAE - 1 - (1) -
At 31st December 2005 RZEERE+TZA=FT-R 1,052 3,364 364 1,109 5,889
Carrying values B
At 315t December 2005 RZZRRET-A=+-A 30 178 483 178 869
At 31t December 2004 RZZEME+ZA=1-H 70 176 876 206 1328
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
% WS M

/3

16. DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURES 16. BEBREH
Movements of development expenditures were as REEBRZEFHOT @ —
follows:—
2005 2004
—ETHF —TTQNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR AETT
Beginning of the year E4) - 292
Write-off k| - (292)
End of the year FR - -
17.  INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 17. REEQARAIz#ER
2005 2004
“ETREF ZTEME
HK$'000 HK$’000
BETR BETFT
Cost of investment in an associate BEHEDRKR
— unlisted in PRC — A B E 377 377
Share of post-acquisition losses BoWRRERNLERE
and reserves, net of dividends MERE WK 2
received (377) (179)
- 198
Amount due therefrom e W IR - 2,433
Less: Impairment loss recognised wERDRERR - (1,770)
- 861

In 2004, in the opinion of directors, the amount
due from would not be repaid within next twelve

months. Thus, it was classified as non-current.

T >
OOC
)
o~
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

/9

LUl =

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 17. REBEQR 2B (B
The summarised financial information in respect of FHRASEBMERR ZHMBENBEZN
the Group’s associate is set out below:— e =
2005 2004
“ZZRF —TINF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BB
Total assets BEE 1,670 1,275
Total liabilities BafE (3,368) (2,504)
Net assets EERE (1,698) (1,229
Group's share of net asset AEEEEHERRZ
of the associate BEFE - 198
Revenue EEH 2,789 3,603
(Loss)/profit for the year REE (BR) /57 (474) 564
Group's share of result of AEEREHEDA
the associate for the year AEEEE (198) 198
Details of the associate are as follow:— HABERRZEHMAT @ —
Percentage of
Form of Place of equity interest
business incorporation/ Class of attributable to
Name structure operations share held the Group Principal activity
A&/ AEEENS
=L EBRBEA EEnY FERGERN KREBIL TEREH
Beijing Teletron System Incorporated PRC Ordinary 40% Provision of
Integration Company SR L H TRk telecommunications
Limited and computer
ERMEERRGEK telephony solutions
AR A RUEEARERER

There were no other associate held by the Group

as at 31st December 2005.

AR

R-FPEHEF+-A=+—0  ~%E
TRAE R B ERT -

annu
r e p o
2 0 0
F
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
% WS M

18.

19.

20.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET 18. WAHHEEMKEE
The asset represents a nominee membership in a FHREERETRE —sBAKEeze
Golf Club in the PRC. They are measured at cost FEONBSHEERRKARRERE - B
less impairment at each balance sheet date. The AFEBEERPZEmMERS -
fair value was approximated to the corresponding
carrying amount.
OTHER INVESTMENT 19. HhkR#&
Other investment as at 31st December 2004 RZZEZNF+_A=+—HZ2EMEK
represents the cost of a nominee membership in a BREAETHEBE —SBRANRGEHEL
Golf Club in the PRC. Upon the application of KA - R-_ZFEZRF A —BERAER
HKAS 39 on 1st January 2005, other investment SR ERFE39501% - HMIRETDREER
was reclassified to available-for-sale financial asset BT EREIGREN S EAAIHLEE
under HKAS 39 (see notes 2 and 3 for details). M EE (FFRMFE2R3)
INVENTORIES 20. =&
2005 2004
—ZZRF —TEME
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETR BETT
Inventories consisted of:— FEAE: -
Telecommunication and computer BARERER
telephony hardware products BB M 1,999 3,507
Less: Allowance for obsolete and B RE R
slow-moving inventories FERE (1,706) (1,676)
293 1,831
As at 31st December 2005, inventories of R-ZEZRAF+_A=+—8 - H5%

approximately HK$143,000 (2004: HK$1,831,000)

were stated at net realisable value.

143,0007T (ZZE T4 : #%#1,831,000
TO) FENEEFEAR -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt KRS
21.  TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. FEUWERR
Trade receivables consisted of:— FEW AR KB IE -
2005 2004
“ETHE —TEME
HK$'000 HK$’000
BETR BETT
Account receivables JE Uk BR 3K 3,087 3,130
Retention receivables FE W iR & R 1,355 1,203
4,442 4,333
Less: Accumulated impairment B BEHRE (2,502) (1,872)
1,940 2,461
The Group normally grants to its customers credit AEE KRB TEFI0BE60REE
period ranging from 30 days to 60 days. Aging B o BUBRRZEREC DTN = —
analysis of trade receivables is as follows:—
2005 2004
—EEIF ZTTmE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETFT
0 to 1 month 0£118A 1,597 876
1 to 2 months 12218 R 391 303
2 to 3 months 2Z38 A 197 322
3 to 6 months 3Z6fEA 747 567
6 to 9 months 62918 A 65 80
9 to 12 months 921218 A 32 51
Over 12 months 12EANE 1,413 2,134
4,442 4,333
The fair value of the Group’s trade receivables at RZZETRF+_A=+—H  x&HE
31st December 2005 was approximate to the FEWRR R 2 A FEEE R E 2 BRE EAE

o

corresponding carrying amount.

Hﬁ" <N T ZhIE
EIRA - AEF B RARENR

22. AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE 22.

The amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing and

)Tﬂn\}%rﬁ
)IJJH

Pl

repayable on demand.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B % 3| 5 M EE
23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 23. FEMNKE > RERHEMEWK
RECEIVABLES
2005 2004
—2255 e 5
HK$'000 HK$’000
BET T BETT
Prepayments, deposits and other BIRE  BeREM
receivables consisted of:- EYRFERE
Prepayments BFE 203 406
Rental and utility deposits HERAAFER 260 503
Others it 245 310
708 1,219
The fair value of the Group’s prepayments, deposits R-TEERF+_A=+—H ~&E
and other receivables at 31st December 2005 was FARRIR - R REMEKRRIAZ RF
approximate to the corresponding carrying amount. BEERBZEMERS
24.  PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 24. EBEFRTER

The amount represents deposits pledged to banks
to secure bank overdrafts and undrawn facilities
granted to the Group.

The deposits carry variable interest rate. The
pledged bank deposits will be released upon the
settlement of relevant bank borrowings. The fair
value of bank deposits at 31st December 2005

approximates to the corresponding carrying amount.

ZRAED KR TRITUERE TS
BZRITBEXNARENZRE -

ERAFEFTRIHA ¥E+§°E%Eﬁﬁiiﬁﬂ
Tr A 008 B A BERTT B IR AR R
TEFR_ZFZTRF+ _A=1+— EIZ
AFEERRBZEEEES



25.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHORT-TERM BANK BORROWINGS 25.

Short-term bank borrowings consisted of:—

LUl =

FEHRTER
RHRITERERE  —

2005 2004

SPPs —TEmE

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BETT

Bank overdrafts - secured RITEX -HER 510 393
Trust receipts bank loans - secured ERUBERTER-FER 576 481
1,086 874

At 31st December 2005, all short-term bank
borrowings are variable-rate borrowings which carry

interest per annum as follows:—

R-ZZEZTRAF+-_A=+—8 " Fia8
HSRITRE R BIZ BB - LT HEF)
Rt B —

2005 2004
ZEERLf g % Juifas
Bank overdrafts - secured Prime-rate Prime-rate plus 1.25%
BRITEX-FEM RERNX REENEM.25%

Trust receipts bank loans - secured

ERRBERTER-BER

The directors consider that the carrying amount of
short-term bank borrowings approximates their fair

value.

Refer to Note (32) for details of the Group’s banking
facilities.

Standard bills rate plus 1.25% Standard bills rate plus 0.25%/1.25%
REREEEM25%

EEZEE R NM0.25%/1.25%
EERAENPRTEEZFMHEHR

N EERE -

EEARERTBRAEZHERNE
(32

HN T

(]

© 5

OOC

)

"

59U+ —



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M

TRADE PAYABLES
The Group is normally granted by its vendors credit
periods ranging from 0 day to 30 days. Aging

analysis of trade payables is as follows:—

FE A3 BR K

AEE-—REHERS TOEE30BE
B - BNRHZEROMOT © —

S
D >
T >
oOoc
- o
o~

2005 2004
—ZZHEF —ZTTQEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
0 to 1 month 02118 A 362 418
1 to 2 months 12218 A 161 236
2 to 3 months 2Z3(8A 82 -
3 to 6 months 3Z6fH A - -
6 to 12 months 621218 A 90 -
Over 12 months @AM E 46 450
741 1,104
The fair value of the Group’s trade payables at R-ZZTERF+_A=+—H x&E
31st December 2005 was approximate to the ENERZ A FEERERYZREES
corresponding carrying amount. H e
27.  SHARE CAPITAL 27. RAE
2005 and 2004
“RERER-ERMNE
Number of shares Nominal value
R4 8B EfE
‘000 HK$’'000
T BETT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each FREGEEBEIOT LR
Authorised ETE 1,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid BETRER 232,000 23,200

AARREMBRAIRNENBEBRE -
HERBEARFERNETES -

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed

securities during the year.



28.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a Share Option Scheme
on 3rd May 2000 (“Share Option Scheme”),
pursuant to which it may grant options to employees
(including executive directors) of the Group to
subscribe for shares in the Company. Pursuant to
the Share Option Scheme, options were granted on
30th June 2000 to executive directors and other
employees of the Group to subscribe for an
aggregate of 19,420,000 shares in the Company at
a price of HK$1.30 per share, during the exercise
period from 1st July 2003 to 30th June 2010. No
options were granted during the year ended 31st
December 2005 under the Share Option Scheme.

Pursuant to resolutions passed at a special general
meeting of the shareholders held on 13th November
2002, the Company terminated the Share Option
Scheme and adopted a new share option scheme
(“New Share Option Scheme”) in order to comply
with the new requirements of Chapter 23 of GEM
Listing Rules effected on 1st October 2001. Under
the terms of the New Share Option Scheme, the
board of directors of the Company may, at their
discretion, grant options to the participants fall
within the definition prescribed in the New Share
Option Scheme including the employees, non-
executive directors of the Company or its
subsidiaries, etc., to subscribe for shares in the
Company at a price determined by the Company’s
Board of Directors, and will not be less than the
highest of (i) the nominal value of the shares; (ii)
the average closing price of the shares quoted on
the GEM on the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the closing
price of the shares quoted on the GEM on the date
of grant, subject to a maximum of 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time.
The number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted to any individual in any one year
is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any point in time, without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.
Options granted to substantial shareholders or
independent non-executive directors in excess of
0.1% of the Company’s share capital in issue and
with an aggregate value (based on the closing price
of the shares on the date of grant) in excess of
HK$5 million must be approved by the Company’s

shareholders.

28.

LUl =

IR RSt A
AABR_ZEETEFRA=-BHEM—E
RS ([RARERTE) - #But - N
AR A SRR ER T AEEES (21FEH
TER) LREARABRMD - RIFRRAE
i E AEERTESRAMEEER
—EETEXNA=-TAEE TR -
AR EE=F+tHA—HE_ZT—ZTF
NA=TH®TEEM  LERBE
1.3070 4 788 19,420,0000% A8 A &) f%
weRBEE-_FTTHF+-_A=+—8
IEFE - AE BN SRR RRAES B4R
o £F ] SRR A ©

A

BEAATRER-_ZEE_F+— A+
SHBTZRAFIASEIAZ RZE
R ARRBRIERRES B W ERN—
EH AR B ([FRARET &) - A
HERIER EMBRANFE3ER =TT —
F+A—BERZIFIET - REBEFRR
BB 2GR ARREEFAMIERA
REFABRESEFTREZAEKRDH
EHE(BEAQGRENHBEARZIEES KIE
WITESS) BEAEAARESEER
ZERRBEARGRND ZRRE - 5
CREEBTSEERUAT=FZES
. OBRDEME (HRERDEBRER
AR 4 5% HH B B AT A E & 5 A A FT A
WME T TE ¢ Rii)E BRG5ERR
EREE B EB AR TE :
HFERUBAARATEZEETRA
210% ° EER —F A MmER - B
ATEEZRRESRZBROEBE @ £
MRS AR R A Z REBLAERT © TS
BANREREETEMNEKE ZRDZ
1% MEEZRRHBZIFERITESHED
HBE A QR B BETRA0%REE (R
IR AR B EAR W T (B 5T &) st
5,000,0007C 2 RRHE + HEEBMBAR
AR R Z BLAE ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B H S

28.

o

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 28. %\HﬁﬁérﬁrﬁJ (ﬁ*)
The New Share Option Scheme will remain in force RREAEE T2 _F+—HA+=
for a period of 10 years from 13th November 2002. H tﬁ‘f'iﬁ’xﬂﬁﬂ o FERR M RARERS
A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on BTFEAEINBBEITZREBANRE -
acceptance of the grant of an option.
During the year ended 31st December 2005, no REBEE_TTRF+_A=+—HIF
share option has been granted under the New Share E - MARBRBEFRBRETEIRE 2R
Option Scheme. The options already granted under ferE - MARBRREFSERE ZRK
the Share Option Scheme are unaffected. AN E -
Movements of employee share options during the HE_TZERAFR_ZTTNF+ A=
two years ended 31st December 2005 and 2004, T—BHIEMEFER - BERESZ BN
were:— o
2005 Number of share options
ut & 5k ARELE
Subscription  Outstanding at Granted Exercised  Cancelled/ Outstanding at
price Tst January during during lapsed during 31st December
Date of grant  Exercisable period per share 2005 the year the year the year 2005
W-2%3% R-2REF
-R-H £RE tZA=t-A
RiEAH fESR SRARE AR FACRH Epefif  HE8/%% WA
HKS
Directors  30/6/2000 1/7/2003 to 30/6/2010
g% —2%% ‘Tf £+R-0%
~AZTH SE-EERASTE 130 9,800,000 - - (6,800,000) 3,000,000
Employees  30/6/2000 1/7/2003 to 30/6/2010
8 —2%% ZEE-ELA-HE
~AZTH SE-EERASTE 130 760,000 - - (100,000) 660,000
10,560,000 - - (6,900,000) 3,660,000
2004 Number of share options
“EIRE ARERA
Subscription  Outstanding at Granted Exercised  Cancelled/ Outstanding at
price Tst January during during lapsed during  31st December
Date of grant ~ Exercisable period per share 2004 the year the year the year 2004
RZFERE e Yk
i ERE +ZA=1-A
RiHAH TEAR ERAEE RATTE  EAEEA FREAE  HE/&R RATTE
HKS
Directors 30/6/2000 1/7/2003 to 30/6/2010
83 : ZEE-ELA-HE
“E-RERAZTE 130 9,800,000 - - - 9,800,000
Employees  30/6/2000 1/7/2003 to 30/6/2010
B8 “FE% ZEE-ELA-HE
~AAZTH T-RERAZTR 130 2,960,000 - - (2,200000) 760,000
12,760,000 - - (2,200,000) 10,560,000
All share options were granted before 7th November FERBENR_ZZT_F+—HERHA

2002 and fully vested before 1st January 2005. The
application of HKFRS 2 has had no material effect
on how the share-based payments of the Group are

presented for current and prior accounting years.

BHUR-—FTRF—A—ANEES
B SR BB TR A O A 29 3
AEERAGHFERBEGHFED
71 2 B BARR {3 9 BB AR B A B8 -
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30.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RESERVES

Capital reserve represents the negative goodwill
arising from the acquisition of Proactive Technology
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary, by
CentreWorld Holding Limited, another wholly-
owned subsidiary, in January 1998. The Group has
adopted HKFRS 3 to derecognise all negative
goodwill at Tst January 2005. Details are set out in
notes (2) and (3).

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(a) Operating lease commitments
The Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments in respect of
premises under various non-cancellable

operating leases which fall due as follows:—

29.

30.

LUl =

fik 1

BRFERBR—NANNEFE—H  ARF
# & & Mf & 2 7l CentreWorld Holding
LimitedE B AR AN S —RE2ENE
AREMBBRERAGNAEENAR
2o AEEER-_ZTTRAF-—A—BEK
#0778 B 75 R 5 2R R 35 3 5% DA SRS B R AT
FABE - ARFBHRMEQREG) -

AIERIAREE

(a) KERNEE
REBIRIEZ IS Al JUEHK =18
AMERYMEABRTZHERS
RRREEREWT © —

2005 2004

—EREF —TIMF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BETR BB

Within one year —FR 511 407
In the second to fifth years E-RERF

inclusive (BEEERMEF) 102 284

613 691

Operating lease payments represent rentals
payable by the Group for certain of its office
properties and staff quarters. Both leases are
negotiated and rentals are fixed for an

average of 1.5 year.

(b) Contingent liabilities

KEHENFEARAEEREET
MAEYWERETIEEREN2ME
- MOZHERRBES ZEE -
MEFIHR/1.5F ©

(b) HAREE

2005 2004

SE S —TEpF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BETT BETT

Performance bond BHRE - 177

aN T

(]

© 5

OOC

)

e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31.

32.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group maintains various retirement schemes
for its employees. The retirement scheme for
employees of PRC representative office is a
mandatory central pension scheme organised by
the PRC government, the assets of which are held
separatively from those of the Group. Contributions
made are based on a percentage of the eligible
employees’ salaries and are charged to the income
statement as they became payable, in accordance
with the rules of the scheme. The employer
contributions vest fully once they are made. The
Group’s Hong Kong employees are covered by the
mandatory provident fund, which is managed by
an independent trustee. The Group and its Hong
Kong employees each make monthly contributions
to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ cash income
with the maximum contribution by each of the
Group and the employees limited to HK$1,000 per

month.

During the year, the aggregate contributions made
by the Group to the retirement schemes were
approximately HK$212,000 (2004: HK$293,000).
During the year, there were no material forfeitures
available to offset the Group’s future contributions
(2004: Nil).

BANKING FACILITIES AND PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As at 31st December 2005, the Group had aggregate
banking facilities of approximately HK$7,000,000
(2004: HK$6,200,000) from several banks for
overdrafts, loans, and trade financing. Unused
facilities as at the balance sheet date amounted to
approximately HK$5,914,000 (2004:
HK$5,148,000). These facilities were secured by
the Group’s bank deposits of approximately
HK$2,000,000 (2004: HK$5,002,000). The Group
did not have any charges on other assets as at 31st
December 2005 and 2004.

31.

32.

R KR A T8

AEEREREB R AR AR KRG
g  ARERFTEZARNERERES
TEE S H— I8 M A A& 58
MR RGRRET B - At Bl 2 BEEARE
BeEBEEIRER REZFEHZH
A HRDEBEEEREEFH 2B DL
EEE - 3R EHR SR 18 a5 R A
B BEHK—B(EL - E2REEM
B-AEBREEREERIBRESF
Bl BABIRFEAETE  c AEERES
BREES T AHBARERSRAN5%E
HEK - AR ERREET,0007T °

RAFEE - AEEFBRKER T EED
ZHRE £ HBEE212,000T (ZFFN
& : % ¥293,0007T) c FA - AEEE
BEME R Z ER KA AEEREAR
EEZABER(ZCETNE : &)

BITHEREERR
RZTETRF+=-ZA=+—8 ' x5H
HHERITRE LA 7,000,0007T
(ZZTZT M4 - #%6,200,0007T) &
EEY  BERRESRE - MABAN
AERAEE A4 ABES5,914,000T (=
TZT P4 : B #¥5,148,0000T) ° L@l
& AREE 2 R1T717 KA 852,000,000
T (ZZEZTWMEF : %B%5,002,0007T) fEH
e AEEBR_ZTRAFR_TTMF
+ZA=+—BuEAWEMEEWR
e



33.
(a)

(b)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Compensation of directors and key
management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other

LUl =

FRALTXRS
(a) EERTREBABZHMH

SSH

EERTEEEEXNERNAEE

members of key management during the year ZEFMIT - —
was as follows:—

2005 2004
—RTLF “TTWE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETR BRI
Short-term benefits EEER 2,007 2,498
Other long-term benefits H it & B A 52 60
2,059 2,558

The remuneration of directors and key

executives is determined by the
Remuneration Committee having regard to
the performance of individuals and market

trends.

Amount due from an associate
The amount due from an associate is set
out in the balance sheet on page 39. The

term is set out in note 22.

EERTETBRABZHFM D AFHME
BeRBEANZKRALTSBEME

TE °

FE W B & N B FRIR

JE B &8 X R FRIAF M B398 2
BEABBRA - AEFBEERNH
22 ¢

(b)

g

aN T

(]

© 5
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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34.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the subsidiaries as at 31st December 2005

are as follows:—

34. KMIBQH

R_ZZRF+_A=+—HNHMER

AERMT : —

Percentage of

Place of Issued and  equity interest
incorporation/ Class of fully paid attributable
Name operations shares held  share capital to the Group Principal activities
ST/ BERITR REBENL
#8 RSk FERDERN SRRA REED L FEER
CentreWorld Holding British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1,029 100% Investment holding
Limited (“BVI") gL 1,029% 7 REER
RBRAEHS
Interworth, Inc BVI Ordinary Us$100 100% Investment holding
RERLHS gl 100X 7T REZR
Proactive Technology Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000,000  100% Provision of
Limited B LER 7 %1,000,00070 telecommunications
BEARKERAA and computer
telephony solutions
REBAREMER
BARN R
Proactive International Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100,000 100% Trading of
Limited BB @R 7 #100,00070 telecommunication
BEABBRERAA products and
provision of
management
consultancy
ERERMZES R
RETERARS
Netwin Worldwide Limited BVI Ordinary U$100 100% Investment holding
RERLES ¥l 10055 7T RAER
Proactive Technology PRC Ordinary RMB5,000,000  100% Trading of
Development (Beijing) Rl AE%5,000,0007C telecommunication

Limited'
5" = nf @*‘H’i?‘%
ARAR

products and
provision of
tele-commerce
services
%ﬁ%ﬁZ%%&
RUEBABERS



34.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

34.

LUl =

ME AR (8)

Percentage of

Place of Issued and  equity interest
incorporation/ Class of fully paid attributable
Name operations shares held  share capital to the Group Principal activities
ML/ ERTR AEEEN
=L XM FERGERN SERE REBD TEXH
Proactive Multimedia Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% Provision of
Marketing Agency Limited BB TR BT telecommunication
BN RETREE and computer
BRAA telephony solutions
RUEETARERER
BARR
Note: Htat
(1) The Company is a wholly foreign owned

enterprise in the PRC.

The shares of CentreWorld Holding Limited are held
directly by the Company. The shares of other

subsidiaries are held indirectly.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
subsisting at end of the year or at any time during

the year.

(1) ZARB/—EKRPEKRILZINEGE
A

% CentreWorld Holding Limited®J FT &
BORARFPEEFTHIN  HMHER
Az RARRABERS -

RERKFRNEMERE - A LHBERR
BEEFEERENEBES
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9 2 ‘ FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
TEHBEMRE

RESULTS ¥4&

For the year ended 31st December
BET-A=T-BLEE
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
2R _TENEFE —FTT-F _TT_F _"TT-F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BETT BB BB

Turnover EEH 20,982 17,515 30,459 26,312 49,355
Cost of sales HERAR (11,524) (9,386) (12,297) (10,149) (19,473)
Gross profit e 9,458 8,129 18,162 16,163 29,882
45% 46% 60% 62% 61%
Other operating income Hith& % i 489 - - - -
Distribution and selling PERHEER
expenses (34) (20) (63) (58) (1,535)
General and administrative -BRRITBEAR
expenses (11,442) (15,479) (21,692) (25,331) (51,283)
Finance costs, net A& AT 57 (25) (41) 49 383

Loss on disposal of/provision ~ HEEE AT
for impairment in value of REFE/

investment in an associate HERE - - (770) (187) (1,300)
Loss on investments REEREE (94) - - (338) -
Share of result of an associate E{EEE & N B £E (198) 198 (377) (213) (54)
Loss before tax BRBLATE 1B (1,764) (7,197) (4,781) (9,915) (23,907)
Income tax expenses PREBEX - (51) (81) (56) (122)
Loss for the year FEERR (1,764) (7,248) (4,862) (9,971) (24,029)
Attributable to:- THIEMR : -

Equity holders of parent BRAREREEA (1,764) (7,248) (4,862) (9,900) (23,544)

Minority interests PERRER - - - (71) (485)

(1,764) (7,248) (4,862) (9,971) (24,029)

T >
OOC
)
o~



ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREAE

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EFERBRE

93

As at 31st December

R+=A=+-H
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
“2ERF _TTINE _—TT=F _TT-_F _"TT-F

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BET R BT BT BETT BETT
Total non-current assets FRBAERRA 1,155 2,475 3,339 7,139 13,493
Total current assets MBEELE 12,196 15,274 20,248 26,339 34,028
Total current liabilities MEBELEE (4,616) (7,347) (5,950) (11,047) (14,779)
Total non-current liabilities FRBDEELE - = - - (43)
Equity attributable to equity ~ EREERFAA

holders of the parent FEfh T % 8,735 10,402 17,637 22,431 32,286

Minority interests LHRRE R - - - - 413

HN T

(]

T >

OOC

"
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
RRBF RS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the annual general
meeting of Proactive Technology Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) will be held at 14th Floor, Bangkok Bank
Building, 18 Bonham Strand West Street, Sheung Wan,
Hong Kong, on Friday, 28th April 2006 at 10:00 a.m. for

the following purposes:—

1. To receive and consider the audited financial

statements and the reports of the directors and the

auditors for the year ended 31st December 2005.

2. To re-elect directors and to authorize the board of

directors to fix their remuneration.

3. To re-appoint auditors and to authorize the board of

directors to fix their remuneration.

As special business, to consider, and if thought fit, pass

the following ordinary and special resolutions:—

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

4. “THAT:-

(a)

(c)

subject to paragraph (b) and (c) of this
Resolution, the exercise by the Directors during
the Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of
all powers of the Company to allot, issue and
deal with additional shares of the Company and
to make or grant offers, agreements and options
which might require the exercise of such powers,
be and the same is hereby generally and

unconditionally approved;

the approval in paragraph (a) of this Resolution
shall be in addition to any other authorisation
given to the Directors and shall authorise the
Directors on behalf of the Company during the
Relevant Period to make or grant offers,
agreements and options which might require the
exercise of such powers after the end of the

Relevant Period;

the aggregate nominal amount of share capital
issued, allotted or dealt with or agreed
conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted
(whether pursuant to options or otherwise) and
issued by the Directors pursuant to the approval

in paragraph (a) of this Resolution, otherwise

ZBEEAMBERERAR ([RAAF])ER]
R_ZFBRFOA_+/\BAEHH LFTEIE
BEB LBRXEATI8RBARITREI4EH]
THEMRITRRAFAE :

1. LEHE_ZTZ
ERERUNBEHRELRESS

ERF+ A=+ —HLF
& A BED

ST

REEZVREEFTEEESESTL

@Mﬁ:

3. BEZHEREEESFSE T %A
<

ERRFRIEE  EELRIBERE

BTIRERR

TRRFRIRESR - —

EERBR
G
EARZERbO) R (QBRRT » —&
\%&ﬁﬂﬂ'—‘rﬁt/&%%%ﬁéﬁ%@,EfHF'EEJW
(ERR T TEARBZ — Y%
5 LAERCE - ?é‘ﬁ&}ﬁi%$“‘7%’ﬁ
SNBRAD - AR SRR TS A AT 8E 7R

ﬁﬁlﬁt%ﬁéﬁﬁﬂf’ﬁ.‘ﬁﬁk&%z%ﬁx
E o AR RELRBRE

BRERTEFENEBEREN  NRZ
R@QBZHEBREEFENRAF
REBBRAREAABIEHHET
EEREBAREAERRITEUEED

FAERSR T2 ERER  BEK
B E B Bt
EEEREBEARBRQBR A EME

¥ BT REERE GREEGRGR
BRI E (I 2B R IEE IR
FEMRE) Z2BA - MENBIEEB



NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

than pursuant to (i) a Rights Issue (as hereinafter
defined); or (ii) the exercise of any option which
may be granted under the share option scheme
of the Company or any other option scheme or
similar arrangement for the time being adopted
by the Company for the grant or issue to officers
and/or employees of the Company and/or any
of its subsidiaries of shares or rights to acquire
shares of the Company; or (iii) any scrip dividend
scheme or similar arrangements providing for
the allotment and issue of shares of the Company
in lieu of the whole or part of a dividend on
shares of the Company in accordance with the
bye-laws of the Company (“Bye-laws”) in force
from time to time or a specific authority granted
by the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting, or (iv) rights or an issue of shares of
the Company upon the exercise of any
subscription rights attached to any existing
warrants of the Company or any existing
securities of the Company which carry rights to
subscribe for and/or are convertible into shares
of the Company, shall not exceed the aggregate

of:

(i) 20% of the aggregate nominal amount of
the share capital of the Company in issue
on the date of the passing of this Resolution;

and

(i) (if the Directors are so authorised by a
separate ordinary resolution of the
shareholders of the Company) the nominal
amount of any share capital of the Company
repurchased by the Company subsequent
to the passing of this Resolution (up to a
maximum equivalent to 10% of the
aggregate nominal amount of the share
capital of the Company in issue on the date

of the passing of this Resolution)

and the authority pursuant to paragraph (a) of

this Resolution shall be limited accordingly; and

RRBEFARSEESE

MW (EEAETX) ¢ REHAFTER
BARARMZABRETHE RS
MAREREEERMHERRSHRA
BX% siE 8 RHEITRG 2R
i & B BR AN 2 A ] E At SRR T Bl Sk AR
PR B FGIDRBEA R R AR ([A
ARIAAD) RARRRRERRKE
BT 2 HERERELERETAR
AN B K 2 BP sk AR 10 AR B 2 AT A
R EET B MR UL PR BEITRAD ¢ K
(iv)BE B 7 AR 3k B 77 6 AN 2 R AT 3B
IRHEB AT EM RBEE - ZERAE
BERBNSHEBTIIMEZEM :

2]

(i) ZNRBRBBHHAQREET
R EERREZ20% 0 &

(i) (WEESERRRBRERRE—
BRI EBRBRERE) AR
AR AR B SBB P @ R AR
RARAEERTE (FRZARR
ERBEEHNAAFE BT
BRAEERAREZ10%2R)
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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for the purpose of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the
date of the passing of this Resolution until

whichever is the earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general

meeting of the Company;

(i) the expiration of the period within the next
annual general meeting of the Company is
required by the Bye-laws, the Companies
Act 1981
applicable law of the Bermuda to be held;

of Bermuda, or any other

and

(iii) the date passing of an ordinary resolution
by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting revoking, varying or
renewing the authority given to the

Directors by this Resolution.

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares in the
Company open for a period fixed by the
Company or by the Directors to holders of shares
in the Company on the register of members of
the Company on a fixed record date in
proportion to their holdings of such shares or
class thereof (subject to such exclusion or other
arrangements as the Directors may deem
necessary or expedient in relation to fractional
entitlements, or having regard to any restrictions
or obligations under the law of, or the
requirements of any recognized regulatory body
or any stock exchange applicable to the

Company).

5. “THAT:

(a)

subject to paragraph (b) and (c) of this
Resolution, the exercise by the Directors during
the Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of
all powers of the Company to repurchase its
issued shares, subject to and in accordance with
all applicable laws and rules and requirements
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Growth Enterprise Market on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as amended
from time to time, be and the same is hereby

generally and unconditionally approved;

(d)

RARZERME :

(BB ERNRAZRBBAEAES
T =Fh&FAHILZHHE :

() ARARTERFRAFREHR
Z 8

(i) ARBZRABMA - BFRE—
AN—FRBPESEME AL T
REBREGIBREARA AR
TTEREBAFEASGZHRK
=1 3

(i) EARAIREAE L@ABYLE
REBERBBEHIEFTRABZRET
ARREEGHENZA -

[ THIER AR R R A AR EES
EEZHERN  mPRIEERLREH RS
FIRREZMAZ RO FEARKREE
By Z 5 B L Pl 2 2 3 E B 1) 2 ff &
(EAXESTSRTHERELNZE
EARDE R IR il 5 B F sk (E (778
BEREMNIESZZSHMZRE ém,
VERBEEZHREREMLZHERR
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ERRZBRO) RCQOBRMBRBRT - —&
[ENE TS 1¢Ttt&§$’§ﬁé“ﬁ%§,ﬁﬁﬁeﬁm
(EBERTX)AEARRARZ —
7 BEARRZEETRGD AR
FARBEIRIRBERA TREE 2 @A
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(b)

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

the approval in paragraph (a) of this Resolution
shall be in addition to any other authorization
given to the Directors and shall authorise the
Directors on behalf of the Company during the
Relevant Period to procure the Company to
repurchase its issued shares at a price determined

by the Directors;

the aggregate nominal amount of shares of the
Company which may be repurchased by the
Company pursuant to the approval in paragraph
(a) of this Resolution during the Relevant Period
shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal
amount of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of the passing of this
Resolution and the said approval of this

Resolution shall be limited accordingly; and

for the purpose of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the
date of the passing of this Resolution until

whichever is the earliest of:

(i)  the conclusion of the next annual general

meeting of the Company;

(i) the expiration of the period within which
the next annual general meeting of the
Company is required by the Bye-laws, the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, or any
other applicable law of Bermuda to be held;

and

(iii) the date passing of an ordinary resolution
by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting revoking, varying or
renewing the authority given to the

this

Directors of the Company by

Resolution.”

RRBEFARSEESE
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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“THAT condition upon the Resolution numbered 4
and 5 in the notice convening this meeting being
passed, the general mandate granted to the directors
of the Company to allot, issue and deal with
additional shares of the Company pursuant to
Resolution numbered 4 in the notice convening this
meeting be and is hereby extended by the addition
thereto of an amount representing the aggregate
nominal value of shares repurchased by the Company
under the authority granted pursuant to or in
accordance with the authority granted under the said
Resolution numbered 5, provided that such amount
shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal
amount of the issued share capital of the Company at

the date of passing this resolution.”

SPECIAL RESOLUTION

“THAT the existing Bye-laws be and are hereby

amended in the following manner:

1. Bye-law 66

(i) by

immediately after the words “on a show of

inserting the following words
hands unless” in the 12th line of the existing

Bye-law 66:

“voting by way of a poll is required by the

rules of the Designated Stock Exchange or”;

(i) by deleting the full-stop at the end of the
existing Bye-law 66(d) and substituting a
semicolon therefor and thereafter the word

Y7

or”; and

(iii) by inserting the following new Bye-law
66(e) immediately after the existing Bye-
law 66(d):

“(e) if required by the rules of the
Designated Stock Exchange, by the
chairman of such meeting and/or the
Directors who, individually or

collectively, hold proxies in respect of

shares representing five per cent (5%)

or more of the total voting rights of

all Members having right to vote at

such meeting.”;

6. [BE: EARSBEMBZF4RESER
FEREXNBBZIGHET BARXRRESR
BRBARNGREFIEABERATER
RAEN AR B REITRD 2 —REER
B EAQAIEEGHRIBEZE —RERER
Bt 2% R 3 1Tk B B B IR 1 s R e 3 %
BT ZRABEELE - MAESERAR A
KEBEARGBREMBFESBREARBRTES
SZREDABEARRRAZLHEESK
B EUEBETFEARRAERNARSR
BBZBZEBITRANEEBEZ10% ]

BRRBR
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1. #BIE 66k
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Bye-law 67

by deleting Bye-law 67 in its entirety and

substituting the following therefor:

“Unless a poll is so required or demanded and,
in the latter case, not withdrawn, the chairman
of the meeting should indicate to the meeting of
the Company the level of proxies lodged on each
resolution and the balance for and against the
resolution, after it has been dealt with on a show

of hands.”;

Bye-law 68

by replacing the sentence ‘There shall be no
requirement for the chairman to disclose the
voting figures on a poll.” with the following

sentence:

“The Company shall only be required to disclose
the voting figures on a poll if such disclosure is
required by the rules of the Designated Stock

Exchange.”;

Bye-law 86(2)

by deleting the sentence “Any Director so
appointed by the Board shall hold office only
until the next following annual general meeting
of the Company and shall then be eligible for
re-election at that meeting.” and substituting the

following sentence therefor:

“Any Director so appointed by the Board shall
hold office only until the next following general
meeting of the Company (in the case of the filling
of casual vacancy on the Board), or until the
next following annual general meeting of the
Company (in the case of an addition to the
existing Board), and shall then be eligible for
re-election at that meeting but shall not be taken
into account in determining the Directors or the
number of Directors who are to retire by rotation

at that meeting.”;

RRBEFARSEESE
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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Bye-law 86(4)

by deleting the word “special” immediately
before the words “resolution remove a Director
at any time before the expiration of his period
of office” in Bye-law 86(4) and substituting the

word “ordinary” therefor;

Bye-law 87

(i) by deleting the existing Bye-law 87(1) in
its entirety and substituting the following

therefor as new Bye-law 87(1):

“(1) Notwithstanding any other provisions
in the Bye-laws or any contractual or
other terms on which any Director
may be appointed or engaged, at each
annual general meeting, one-third of
the Directors for the time being, or, if
their number is not a multiple of three,
then the number nearest to, but not
less than one-third, shall retire from
office by rotation, provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once in every three

years.”; and

(i) by inserting the words “and shall continue
to act as a Director throughout the meeting
at which he retires” after the word “re
election” at the end of the first sentence of

paragraph (2).
Bye-law 103

by inserting the following new Bye-law 103(5)
immediately after the existing Bye-laws 103(4):

“(5) Where a substantial shareholder (within the
meaning of the rules of the Designated
Stock Exchange) or a Director has a conflict
of interest in a matter to be considered by
the Board which the Board has determined
to be material, the matter should not be
dealt with by way of circulation of board
resolutions pursuant to this Bye-law or by
a committee (except an appropriate board

committee set up for that purpose pursuant
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

to a resolution passed in a board meeting)
but a board meeting should be held with
the presence of the independent non-
executive Directors who, and whose
associates, have no material interest in the

transaction.”; and

8. Bye-law 115

by deleting the existing Bye-law 115 in its

entirety and substituting the following therefor:

“115. A meeting of the Board may be convened

by the Secretary on request of a Director
or by any Director. A notice thereof shall
be given in writing or by telephone or
by facsimile, telex or telegram at the
address or telephone, facsimile or telex
number from time to time notified to the
Company by such Director, or in such
manner as the Board may from time to
time determine, as may be accepted by
the Designated Stock Exchange and
permitted under the rules of the
Designated Stock Exchange. At least 14
days’ notice shall be given to each
Director for any regular meeting of the
Board, provided that notice need not be
given to any Director or alternate Director
for the time being absent from Hong Kong
and irrespective of the length of notice
given, and wunless all Directors
unanimously waive such notice either
prospectively or retrospectively. A
Director’s attendance at the meeting shall
be deemed to be a waiver of the requisite
length of notice of the meeting by the

Director.”

By Order of the Board

Proactive Technology Holdings Limited

Tsang Chi Hin

Chairman

Hong Kong, 31st March 2006
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Notes:—

(1)

A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at
the meeting convened by the above notice is entitled to
appoint one or more proxies to attend and, in the event
of a poll, vote in his stead. A proxy need not be a member
of the Company. In order to be valid, the form of proxy
must be deposited at the Company’s Hong Kong branch
share registrar, Union Registrars Limited at 311-312 Two
Exchange Square, Central, Hong Kong together with a
power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which
it is signed or a notarially certified copy of that power or
authority, not less than 48 hours before the time for
holding the meeting or adjourned meeting.

Completion and return of the form of proxy will not
preclude members from attending and voting in person
at the annual general meeting or any adjournment.

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed
from Thursday, 27th April 2006 to Friday, 28th April
2006, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfers of shares shall be effected. In order to qualify
for attending the forthcoming Annual General Meeting,
all transfers of shares accompanied by the relevant share
certificates and transfer forms, must be lodged with the
Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Union
Registrars Limited at 311-312 Two Exchange Square,
Central, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:00
p.m. on Wednesday, 26th April 2006.

As at the date of this notice, the board of directors of the
Company comprises four executive directors, namely Mr.
Tsang Chi Hin (the Chairman), Mr. Lam Kim Chau, Mr.
Wong Wai Ho and Mr. Li Siu Ming; and three
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Leung
Lok Ming, Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy and Mr. Chan Ho Wah,
Terence.
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